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TR,A}iIS

NADINE ALECIA WILL]AMS,

PIaint i ff,

VS.

HERMAN GEORGE WILLIAMS,

APPEARANCES:

The Plaintiff:

EIGHTH .JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

FAII{ILY DIVISION

CI,ARK COUNTY, NEVADA

For the Plaintiff: PRO SE

CASE NO. D-16-58629I_D

DEPT. ]

APPEAL NO. 83263

(SEALED)

NADINE ALECIA WILLIAMS

HERMAN GEORGE WILLIAMS

Defendant.

BEFORE THE HONORABLE CHERYL MOSS

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

TRANSCR]PT RE: ALL PENDING MOTIONS

MONDAY, JULY 22, 20L9

The Defendant:
For the Defendant: PRO SE

FILED
JAN 1 I 2022

GOPV kdffifr
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA MONDAY, JULY 22, 201,9

PROCEEDINGS

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 72:51:28)

THE COURT: All right. This i-s a seafed case,

Martin, so this is case D-586291. Are you Nadine?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes .

THE COURT: And you are Herman?

THE DEFENDANT: YCS.

THE COURT: I need both of you to stand, raise your

right hands. Going to have you both sworn in.

THE CLERK: You and each of you do solemnly swear

the testimony you are about to give in this action shal-I be

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help

your God?

THE PLAINT]FE: YCS.

THE DEFENDANT: YCS.

THE COURT: Okay. You may be seated. You've got

three four chil-dren, 14-and-a-ha1f, six, 10-and-a-haJ-f,

nine. Close enough?

THE PLA]NTIFE: YCS.

THE COURT: Okay. And we got CPS records here.

Mom, you are appealing that; are you not?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes, ma'am.
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THE COURT: Is that going to affect your are you

a nurse?

THE PLAINTIFE: Yes, maram.

THE COURT: You're RN?

THE PLAINTIFE: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: For a registered nurse?

THE PLAINTIFF: Registered nurse.

THE COURT: And itrs going to affect your

THE PLAINTIFF: YCS .

THE COURT: -- employment. And they substantiated

it? Which girl? Abi-gai1, the ol-dest?

THE PLAINTIFF: YCS .

THE COURT: Claims there was physical abuse?

THE PLAINTIFF: YCS.

THE COURT: And -- but CPS substantiated it, and so

you're appealing that.

THE PLAINTIEF: I am aPPealing it.

THE COURT: Yeah. Okay. I need to I will find

out what happens with that, but in the meantime, because I

have a substantiated, temporarily, unl-ess you get. that

reversed on the appeal, or you have a right to go to trj-al on

thrs, custody's gol-ng to be at issue. But right now, where

are the kids? With Dad?

THE DEFENDANT: YES.
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THE COURT: And does Mom have -- did the TPO judge

you both fil-ed TPOs on each other, and they were both

denied; were they not?

THE PLAINTIEF: Ma'am, f've never filed a TPO --

THE DEFENDANT: I fi-]ed them.

THE COURT: I see three of them.

THE DEFENDANT: I fil-ed all three of them.

THE COURT: Was it for kids, or

THE DEFENDANT: The last one was for the kids, and

the the other two was for her.

THE COURT: None of them were ever granted.

THE DEEENDANT: NO.

THE COURT: Okay. They were denied.

THE PLAINTIFF: I -- ma'am, I was not aware, because

he was actually taking the mail

THE COURT: There coul-d be

THE PLAINTIFE: f was not aware.

THE COURT: reasons he coul-dn't serve Your or you

didn't know --

THE PLAINTIEE: No, I actual-ly was just notj-fied on

Monday, Monday of last week, when I came here for medj-ation.

THE COURT: Yeah. WelI

THE PLAINTIFF: So I was not aware.

THE COURT: there's no nothi-ng in effect.
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THE PLAINTIEE: Yeah.

THE COURT: And neither of you have harassed each

other, or stal-ked or bothered each other, right?

THE PLAINTIFF: NO.

THE DEEENDANT: NO.

THE COURT: And there's no concern? Okay' And the

TPO, Judge did hear what you had to Sdy, but they said it

didn't it didn't rise to the l-evel of a protection order.

So Mom's allowed to come into contact with the kids, but you

two are in the midst of filing for divorcei is that correct?

THE DEFENDANT: YCS.

THE COURT: And you both want the divorce, I take

ir?

THE DEFENDANT: YCS.

THE PLAINT]EF: YCS .

THE COURT: Okay. I can't do the divorce until

custody thing is resofved. So in terms of custody, there

gorng to be a fot of reasons, obviously, but if we can't

you guys to agree, then I'm going to be the one that has

probably figure out what's best for the kids. There are

allegations. Nobody has fj-Ied any criminal, have they?

chil-d abuse, hitting the child?

THE PLAINTIFE: No, ma'am.

THE COURT: NO?

this
t Ĵ

get

to

DV

For
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THE DEFENDANT: Just the social- worker.

THE COURT: Just the social worker substantiated.

So how do I know if this ain't like, a one time thing, never

i-n your whol-e life, she must have back talked you, and what

did you do? Slap her on the face or something?

THE PLAINTIFF: Ma'am, there's

THE COURT: Or are there allegations of being

whupped by a belt and stuff like that? The boy says -- was

there a boy that said something about that, too?

THE DEFENDANT: There's the boys, the daughter got

hit i-n the head with a PC (sic) plpe.

THE COURT: PVC pipe?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, the pJ-astic round pipe.

THE COURT: Yeah. Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: So every three months, she's back in

the doctor. She's on medication right now, behind the

headaches she having.

THE COURT: Concussion?

THE DEFENDANT: WeII, I don't know yet. She goes to

the doctor on the 24Lh of this month for a CAT scan.

THE COURT: Okay. So somebody made a report to CPS.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. Not it wasn't me.

THE COURT: Okay. Donrt you don't tel-l-

THE DEFENDANT: All- right.
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THE COURT: They're they're confidentlal.

Whoever makes the report's confidential. So you can tel-I me

it wasnrt you, so. Whoever made the ca1l, obviously, that

remains confidential. But either way, it come through the

syst.em, and she's going to -- we'If have to wait. Do do

they give you a time frame of when your appeal- might be heard?

THE PLAINTIFF: I did check on that, and it's not

unti-l- September. But aIl- of this

THE COURT: You a.l-l- know how to get a copy of your

records? I can't give them to you, but you can go down

wal-k yourself down to the DFS offj-ce, tell- them you got a

court case wi-th Judge Moss, I need my court records ASAP, and

they will- email this to you.

THE PLAINTIFF: DFS.

THE COURT: Okay. Yeah. Because you don't have

attorneys, f canrt give you a copy.

THE PLAINTIEE: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay? But they email it to me, and I

just print them.

THE PLAINTIFF: Downstairs

THE COURT: No, flo, no. Martin Luther King and

Alta.

THE PLAINTIFE: Oh, okay.

THE COURT: The Department of Fami1y Servj-ces
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building.

THE PLAINTIEF: Okay.

THE COURT: You walk at the window, tel-I them who

you are, show your ID, and say, I need thj-s because I'm going

to tri-a1

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: -- on custody.

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: Al-1 right. In the meantime, because I

have a substantiation, I wil-l- refer you guys to mediation.

Are there any violence between you and Mom, Dad -- Dad and

Mom? You don't got no

THE PLAINTIFF: Judge

THE COURT: -- physicaJ- altercations or nothing?

THE DEEENDANT: I just stay far away. I stay far

away.

THE PLAINTIFF: Judge

THE COURT: How long you been not living --

THE DEFENDANT: BCCAuSC

THE COURT: together? When did you move out?

THE DEFENDANT: Since March Bth.

THE COURT: Of this year?

THE DEFENDANT: Of this year.

THE COURT: Who moved out?
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THE DEFENDANT: I did.

THE COURT: You moved out and you left the kids with

her, rlght?

THE DEFENDANT: No, took them with me.

THE COURT: Took them wlth you because of that

incident ?

THE DEFENDANT: Because of the incident, took them

wj-th me, took her mother with me, too.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: And t.he reason I stay away and keep

the kids away, she canceled my insurance on my car.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: So by you canceling the insurance,

there's no need for me to

THE COURT: Viell

THE DEFENDANT: Don't cal-l- me to ask me to bring

them nowhere.

THE COURT: This is the typlcal drama that happens

usually when people are starting to get divorced. After a

whil-e, we hope things wiII calm down. Now, you two are

you're you are the Eather, you are the Mother. The only

thj-ng lef t 1s f or you to raise these children until- they're

18. Otherwise, you move on with your life. And the only

thing the only business you guys have to talk about is
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what's going to be happening with the kids.

THE PLAINTIFF: Yeah.

THE COURT: Did the CPS give you a referral-

resources? Are the kids going to counseling, anything of that

sort ?

THE DEFENDANT: The doctor. I took them, they go to

coun they went to counseling

THE COURT: Herman, where you work at? You got

i-nsurance ?

driver.

THE DEEENDANT: NO.

THE COURT: You work?

THE DEFENDANT: YES .

THE COURT: Where you work at?

THE DEEENDANT: Self employed.

THE COURT: What you do?

THE DEEENDANT: Copart.

THE COURT: As a what?

THE DEFENDANT: SeIf employed, Copart, tow truck

THE COURT: Oh, you have your own tow truck?

THE DEFENDANT: YCS.

THE COURT: I got you.

THE DEFENDANT: And I pick up cars for Copart.

THE COURT: Kopar (sic) K-o-P-a-r?
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THE DEEENDANT: No, C. C-o-r-p-a-t (sic).

THE COURT: Copart.

THE DEFENDANT: It's the insurance cars, donation

cars, cars

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: from tow yards --

THE COURT: So you get regular work.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: How much you make a year?

THE DEEENDANT: We11, I haven't

THE COURT: !!ith

THE DEFENDANT: I haven't gone through a whol-e

year. I just started at the end of November.

THE COURT: You picked up your truck? You had to

buy a truck?

THE DEFENDANT: WelI, I had the truck from before

THE COURT: You al-ways had the truck --

THE DEFENDANT: from 2075.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEEENDANT: It's a Chevy Silverado turned into a

tow truck, with a wheel l-if t on it.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: I got another truck, the same t.hing,

2500 Chevy Silverado turned into a wheef
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THE COURT: Now, you l-ive alone with the kids, or

you l-ive with famiJ-y?

THE DEFENDANT: No, it's me and my ki-ds and her

mother. Her mother stays there, too.

THE COURT: You get along with her mother? The

maternal grandmother?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. Did grandma and her don't get

along? You don't get along with your mom?

THE PLAINTIFF: No. Since I stopped --

THE COURT: Why is -- why is she hanging out with

him?

THE PLAINTIFF: Because I stopped supporting her

f inanci-aJ-J-y since September of 2018.

THE COURT: You've always been Lhe breadwinner?

THE PLAINTIFE: Yes. And --

THE COURT: Being a nurser you make about 40, 50,

60,000 or more?

THE PLAINTIEF: Yes, ma'am. Because of all the

bills that I've been supplementing wj-th my mom and for him, I

was working anywhere from 50 to 70 hours a week.

THE COURT : What ' s your special-t y? General- ?

THE PLAINTIEF: Generaf. Primarily --

THE COURT: Any kind of nursing --
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THE PLAINTIFF: -- wounds --

THE COURT: Huh?

THE PLAINTIEF: Primarily wound and lV management.

THE COURT: IV management

THE PLA]NTIFF: YCs .

THE COURT: -- and what was the other one?

THE PLAINTIFF: Wounds. Wounds.

THE COURT: Oh, wounds.

THE PLAINTIFE: Wounds, ostomy --

THE COURT: Wound care.

THE PLAINTIEE: Yes . Wound care.

THE COURT: Got you. Okay.

THE PLAINTIFE: The situation with my mom, I didn't

know how bad it was until I actually got information --

everything that happens, it just kind of happens now. And so,

y€s, I was not aware of

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIEF: the situation with my mom being

so tenuous.

THE COURT: What is this thing, You accuse Dad of

saying he's involving the kids in iJ-IegaL activities?

THE PLAINTIFF: Vrle]], what he has -- what he has

been doing, Your Honor, f want to one t.hat's one of the

reasons I had requested counse
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THE COURT: Just in a nutshell.

THE PLAINTIFF: In a nutshell-, he woul-d have the

children

THE COURT: Come with him to work?

THE PLAINTIFE: No. ActualIy, he woul-d bring home

the same vehi-cles that he's towing from Copart's or body

shops, bring them to the house, swap parts, have the children

invol-ved in that particular activity, and then take the parts

take the cars to its final desti-nation, which is Copart.

And I had a problem with that, and I spoke to him about that.

THE COURT: What kind of

THE PLAINTIFF: Because that is iJ-1ega1.

THE COURT: That was going on under your roof?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes .

THE COURT: When you two shared --

THE PLAINTIFF: And IhaT was

THE COURT: the same roof.

THE PLAINTIFE: That was iI1ega1.

THE COURT: What did you -- did you take pi-ctures?

THE PLAINTIEF: No, I didn't take pictures. I spoke

to him about it, and it lust became an argument.

THE COURT: Did you he did it openly, like i-n the

garage ?

THE PLAINTIEF: He did it in the garage.
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THE COURT: He did it in t.he garage?

THE PLAINTIFF: YeS .

THE COURT: And you didn't bother to take pictures

that he's swapping parts?

THE PLAINTIEF: No, I didn't take pictures, Your

Honor, because at that point, it was still look, just

THE COURT: Don't want. to get him in trouble.

THE PLAINTIFE: try to try to after 15

years, you would think that, okay, try to put. yourself in a

better position, stop doing t.he same things over and over. He

would start doing weJ-I, and then he just gets back into the

same thi-ng of doing something illegal-, and then we're ;ust

r j-ght back to square one.

THE COURT: How would the kids know i-t's iJ-1ega1?

THE PLAINTIFF: Because they know it's not his car.

They know it's -- he will tell them, oh, it's a car I'm taking

back to Copart. Itrs illegal-.

THE COURT: He woul-d take an expensive part out?

THE PLAINTIFF: He would swap the ri-ms, he woufd

swap -- you know, i-f it's somethlng that's intact, and he

would swap and he would swap the things in the garage.

THE COURT: He must have kept a big stock there to

figure out what model- he's bringi-ng in, and then

THE PLAINTIFE: Wel-l, it was primarily for his
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vehicle, not to sefl- or anything like that, but it was for his

vehicl-e.

THE COURT: She making this up, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, she is.

THE COURT: How can you take

THE DEFENDANT: I don't swap --

THE COURT: 1ike, a Toyota Corol-l-a and then swap

it out with tires from a Hyundai?

THE DEFENDANT: They won't fit.

THE PLAINTIEE: No, he would --

THE DEFENDANT: They wonrt fit.

THE PLAINTIFF: swap the Chevy -- the fast

particular incident, he wouJ-d swap the Chevy truck, because he

picked up a Chevy truck --

THE COURT: What kind of parts?

THE PLAINTIFF: -- with -- he took off al-l- four rims

THE COURT: On a ChevY truck?

THE PLAINTIFE: and tires off a Chevy truck and

replaced them on the truck that he's currentl-y driving.

THE COURT: And you didn't take pictures because you

THE PLAINTIFE: No, I didn't.

THE COURT: -- didn't want to
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THE COURT: I didn't take pictures, Your Honor,

because it was like, okay, look, you can't keep doing

THE COURT: Then it's your word against his word,'

isn't that right?

THE PLAINTIFE: It's my word against -- my main

thing is I just need to he's been barring access to the

children. f've tried to call, he blocks my number.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIFF: I've tried to see t.he kids

THE COURT: Taking things into his own hands.

THE PLAINTIFE: Right.

THE COURT: Wel-I, obvi-ous1y CPS l-eft the kids wlth

hi-m --

THE PLAINTIEE: And even that is false, and that's

why I am getting an attorney for that.

THE COURT: You got yeah, you got issues with the

THE PLAINTIEF: Because it is everything is

stemming from --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIFE: the derogatory comments that he's

making about me to the children.

THE COURT: So you guys are lj-ke, way apart. I

can't even send you two to mediation, can I?
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THE PLAINTIFF: That's why I requested medj-ation to

be canceffed --

THE COURT: Cancel-l-ed.

THE PLAINTIFF: -- because I know there is no

happening

THE COURT: Let's set it for trial-. lr]e're going to

be down to February-ish, early February. We'l-1 set it for

trial-, but. in the mean tj-me, I have to do some type of a band-

aid order. Thi-s ain'L a termination of her rights, so she's

going to have contact with the kj-ds. Problem -- weII,

concern. I won't say probJ-em. Concern. You got a 14-and-a-

half that was obviously the subject of the CPS, and teenager,

don't want to see her mom, don't want nothing to do with her

Mom.

Obvi-ous1y, there's been a severe separation of t.he

mother/daughter relationship. Mother would obviously come

into court, request. that she heal the rel-ationship, but the

child would need to go to individual counseJ-ing, and then Mom

will need to go to counseling for her and the daughter. So

that's two types of counseling, individuaf for the chiJ-d, and

reunification counseling between Mom and daughter. So it's

call-ed family counseJ-ing for Mom and individual child

counseling for the daughter. That's why I asked you is

Abigai-1 in any kind of counseling?
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THE DEEENDANT: She was.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: But the place that they go to the

place that they send them to, it wasn't for them. They wanted

to put one of the kids on medication, and I'm not going to do

thaL. So the doctor the doctor that they have, she's

Iooking into a different. locatlon for al-l- four of them to go,

because they split all four of them up, in different spots.

THE COURT: CPS?

THE DEFENDANT: Not. CPS, the doctor

THE COURT: Oh, just you

THE DEEENDANT: just the doctor ltself. I have

all- the papers right here.

THE COURT: You on Medicaid or something?

THE DEEENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: That's what you're using, the medicaid.

THE DEFENDANT: So they send them to these different

place s

THE PLAINTIEF: Bearing in mind, Your Honor, that

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEPENDANT: and --

THE PLAINTIFF: the children --

THE COURT: One moment, one moment.

THE PLAINTIFE: arenrt covered -- sorry.

D-15-586291-D WTLLTAMS 0712212019 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)

vERBAT|M REPORTTNG & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

19

184



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

8

9

10

11

t2

13

74

15

16

I1

1B

79

20

2l

22

23

24

THE COURT: You're going -- and a doctor, an MD, a

pediatrician

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, a pediatrician

THE COURT: recommended that this child go on

medi cat ion ?

THE DEFENDANT: No, they didn't recommend him. The

therapy place was trying to put one of them on medication,

Matthew.

THE COURT: Okay. And --

THE DEFENDANT: And I went back to t.hem and I told

them no. You have to find a different place.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: So she hasn't for she hasn't

found a place for the klds to go to

THE COURT: So which daughter needed medication?

THE DEFENDANT: Not the daughter, the son. Matthew.

They want to put him on --

THE COURT: Matthew? He's nine.

THE DEEENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: Does he have any special any of these

kids have speciaJ- needs ?

THE PLAINTIEF: No, ma'am.

THE DEFENDANT: No.

THE COURT: IEP, anything of that sort?
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THE PLAINTIFF: No, ma'am.

THE COURT: So they're normal- kids when you raised

them together as husband and wife?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Okay. And they wanted Matthew on is

it ADHD or antidepressants, or what kind of medication?

THE DEFENDANT: He just shuts down. He'fl -- he'11

just -- he'Il- start talking to you, good, calm, and then after

he just shut down, start crying. So they want t.o put him on

medicatj-on because he woul-dn't. talk to them. I was J-ike, nah.

Nah. Irm not golng to put no kid of mines on no medi-cation.

THE COURT: Which ones were the subject of CPS?

Herman and Abigall?

THE DEFENDANT: Herman al-l four of them.

THE COURT: AII four of them. Eli-sha's the

youngest, right?

THE DEFENDANT: EIisha.

THE COURT: EIisha.

THE DEEENDANT: That's our youngest.

THE COURT: Is that a boy or a grrl?

THE DEFENDANT: A boy.

THE COURT: You have one, two, three boys?

THE DEFENDANT: Three boys, one girJ-.

THE COURT: One girl. AII four of them yours?
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THE DEFENDANT: YCS.

THE COURT: We're going to put them down for an

observatj-on. I can't just say here you go, throw them in a

room wi-th you. We're going -- we're actually going to put you

in a room downstairs

THE PLAINT]FF: I --

THE COURT: Ma'am, hang on.

THE PLAINTIEF: I'm sorry.

THE COURT: We're going to have you observed with

the kids, and I want to know if they're kicking, screaming, or

they okay with you.

THE PLAINTIFF: I have spent time with them after --

THE COURT: When was the fast time you saw them?

THE PLAINTIFF: FOr I WCNt tO NAIhANiC]. I'M

sorry. Herman the third, I call him Nathaniel. I went to his

graduation and I was there with them. I went to Elisha

THE COURT: Elementary school graduation?

THE PLAINTIFF: Elementary schoof, and then they

were with me at Chuck E. Cheese for two hours

THE COURT: This is how you worked it out with Dad?

THE PLAINTIFE: Right. But then since then, it's

like I can't get him to

THE COURT: I know. I got you.

THE PLAINTIFF: -- do anything.
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THE COURT: ftve been doing thls 19 years, ma'am.

Okay. So I want them observed with you. Good. So you're not

1ike, a total stranger with them, but I want them observed

wi-th you. And you goi-ng to go j-n a room downstairs .

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: They got a two-way mirror, okay? And

they will- observe. There's audio, too. You going to pick a

game with them, you pJ-ay with them. They might do one

indivi-dualJ-y, one on one, and other times all four, or I

don't know how they want to do it, but they can do an

extensive observation. It's a safe place downstairs. It's

going to be in the courthouse. So you'II set up downstairs,

and I'fl need an observation report on that.

That takes about 30 days, and then the kids can be

intervj-ewed. Six is very young, but I can at least get an

idea of what they are. And they'Il just they're not forced

to answer any questions that they're not comfortable with.

They're not forced to choose what parent. We never -- woul-d

ever do that, what parent they want to live wj-th. We just

going to Say, how's it going? They get a voice, okay,

downstairs.

They talk with a person, professional-, downstairs

What's your relationship with your mom, your dad, any other

peopJ-e you're close to? How's schoof going, how are your
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grades? And we'ff focus on rel-ationship, disciplining of the

chj-Idren. They might be asked about that. Okay? But most of

aIJ-, pJ-ease do not feed them the questions. I want you to

tell them --

THE PLAINTIFF: He has been

THE COURT: I want you to tell them three words,

j ust three words . Tell- the truth. That ' s it . So Dad, you' 11

have to bring the kids for an interview and observation.

You'11- make your appointment downstairs. Mediation, Mom,

you'11 be observed with them for the next 30 days. Alf other

times you are you opposed to now, you don't have a

problem Mom visiting wj-th them at Chuck E. Cheese?

THE DEFENDANT: No. The Iast time she took them out

on Apri-l- for for the birthday

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: -- my daughter cal-led me because she

said that she never bought them anything to eat. So I told

them to come home. Two hours with them, nothing to eat.

THE PLAINTIFE: Your Honor

THE COURT: One moment.

THE DEFENDANT: Bring them home -- bring them home.

So her slster was here because I refuse to go. The first tj-me

I went, they came out the IHOP crying, crying.

THE COURT: Another time?
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THE DEFENDANT: This was the very first time they

went. I stayed in the parking Iot.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: l-et them go in there to eat. I

dldn't put no time on it, just sat in the parking lot

THE COURT: Did they eat?

THE DEFENDANT: till they were done

THE COURT: Did they eat?

THE DEFENDANT: They brought the stuff back to the

car I carry out.

THE COURT: Carry out?

THE DEFENDANT: My daughter did, and one of the boys

di-d.

THE COURT: In -- after an hour?

THE DEFENDANT: Aft I don't know how J-ong. I was

;ust sitting in the parking lot.

THE COURT: !,ie]l, how do you know Mom fed them and

then they wanted an extra meal- to bring home?

THE DEEENDANT: I sat in the parking lot, so Irm not

going to say that. You're right.

THE COURT: Right.

THE DEEENDANT: I sat in the parking Iot, waited for

them to come out. They came out crylng

THE COURT: If it was carry out oh, they were

D-15-586291-D WTLLTAMS 07t22t2019 TRANSCRTPT (SEALED)

vERBATTM REPORTTNG & TRANSCRTPTTON, LLC (520) 303-7356

25

190



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

8

9

10

11

t2

13

1,4

15

16

l1

1B

l9

20

2t

22

23

24

crying?

meal-s

l-ike

THE DEEENDANT: So it's a -- she call-ed them a

traitor, calJ-ed my daughter, told my daughter, don't marry a

father like -- don't marry a dad l-ike your father.

THE COURT: Yeah. Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Why should I come around? I mean, I

was

THE COURT: (Indiscernible)

THE DEFENDANT: filing the papers, the writing

route place to go, one of the papers, they told me downstairs,

I got to vacate it, because I tried to do the medi-ation

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: -- and I was here on the 15th

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: I come here to this courtroom

THE DEFENDANT: They was crying when they came out.

THE COURT: So they didn't eat their they ordered

THE COURT: Oh, no. We're not doing the mediation

THE DEFENDANT: NO

THE COURT: -- we're going to do child interview --

THE PLAINTIEF: Your -- your --
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THE DEFENDANT: No, I came to

THE COURT: Hang on, ma'am.

THE DEFENDANT: I came down to the mediation on

the 15th. That's what self help told me to do. They tol-d me

I -- when I go see the judge on Monday, to have it vacated.

Now, as I come down here, I puII papers from the window

because I don't get them --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Iike all the filings

THE COURT: Mediation is for you and Mom to discuss

what custody would be, but Mom don't want that either, so I'm

not doing that.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: So that'l-I be a none on the mediation.

But child interview, yes. Disciptining, relationship wi-th

parents. Okay. And you saying these kids are scared of their

mom?

THE DEFENDANT: No, not me.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: That's what they said.

THE COURT: Al-l- right.

THE PLAINTIFF: Your Honor, he's the one that has

THE COURT: And you're saying a Iot of their main

complaints 1s that she donrt feed them? Hang on. Hang on.
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THE DEFENDANT: She been going out. She works. Irm

not going to knock her. She works. This started from way

back when I started putting these PTOs (sic) in.

THE COURT: TPOs.

THE DEFENDANT: Way before that. Way before that.

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE DEFENDANT: She put down that I don't do nothing

with the kids. Eight months in New York, working, putt.ing

money in her account every month. Every time she woul-d tel-I

me she told me, oh, I got a job training to go to. She's

in Jamaica. I come down for a week, stay with the kids. I

got the whoJ-e passport in my bag, stamp, stamp, stamp. I put

$2,00 0 in her account on August of l-ast year.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEEENDANT: We was all- in New York.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEEENDANT: I come down here, now I'm Iike,

every month it's just Jamaica, Jamaica, Jamaica, Jamaica,

Jamaica, job training. So I open the mail-. August 3rd, I put

the $2r000 in the account for the school cl-othes. I bought

some up there, I bought some in JuIy when I came down

THE COURT: Thatrs 500 a kid.

THE DEFENDANT: HUh?

THE COURT: Thatts 500 a kld for clothing. It's
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expensive, I know.

THE DEPENDANT: Right ?

THE PLAINTIFF: Your Honor?

THE DEEENDANT: She's in Jamaica, swiping the card

August 3rd.

THE PLAINTIFE: Your -- Your Honor

THE COURT: Hold --

THE DEFENDANT: And the card -- she told me, put it

in the bank. I mean, I had the taxes, everything. I mean,

don't do this to me. I've been doing what I've been doing for

a l-ot of years

THE COURT: So what are you sayi-ng?

THE DEFENDANT: Huh?

THE COURT: She's not doing job training?

THE DEFENDANT: No. No. ft's a machine that got

bought. There's a machine that got bought. for $38r000, sent.

to Jamaj-ca, wasnrt supposed to be sent to Jamaica, and when I

approached her about. this

THE COURT: A $38,000 machine?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. When I approach it's a

printing machine, it's an ink printing machine. When I

approach her about it, she tell- me, iL's none of your concern,

don't worry about it. But aII my tools that f've bought,

everything she asked me to do, I need this, I need that, I go
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buy it. Here, hold it, hold it. Donrt come in in here,

sit and try to make me like I'm a thief, I trained my kids to

do this. Them kj-ds, I don't train the kids to do nothinq.

They know. They know how to work.

THE COURT: You don't got no record?

THE DEEENDANT: I have a record. Convicted felony,

seven years of 15 years ago.

THE COURT: For what?

THE DEFENDANT: For burglary.

THE COURT: Okay. That's

THE DEFENDANT: On one of the papers, she said that

she didntt know I had a bad record.

THE PLAINTIFF: I'm

THE DEFENDANT: Right?

THE PLAINTIFE: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: It was okay to file for her papers

to be here

THE PLAINTIEF: Oh

THE COURT: Wai-t a minute. She knew about your

record --

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: she marrj_ed you.

THE DEFENDANT: But she

THE COURT: And had kids with you.
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THE DEEENDANT: -- on one of the papers, she say she

didn't know I was a convi-cted f elony.

THE COURT: But that was a long --

THE DEEENDANT: Eifteen years ago. I caught a case

down here because I went to the school- a week straight with my

daughter. This is four houses away, a glrl kept bothering

my daughter. I went to the father like a human being, talked

to him. As a matter of fact, she brought me over there. This

was the father that was at the mailbox.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEEENDANT: I said f j-sten, we next door

neighbors, teII your ki-d -- f mean, they're kids. They're

going to be arguing. Like, try to keep it apart. The next

day after that, he drives his two daughters to jump on my

daughter. So now you opened the door for me.

THE COURT: Who jumped on your daughter?

THE DEFENDANT: His two daughters.

THE COURT: Whose

THE DEFENDANT: He drove them the next

THE COURT: -- his -- who's this guy?

THE DEEENDANT: I don't rea1ly know him. I don't

know. He fives down the block.

THE COURT: Some guy live down the block had hi-s two

daughters jump
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THE DEFENDANT: Jump on

THE COURT: on your daughter.

THE DEFENDANT: -- my daughter. So now you open the

door for me to act like an idiot. So now the kj-ds come, they

come home, I walk up the block. She comes in the house and

get me, I wal-k up the bJ-ock, trying to tal-k to the fath -- the

mother. The father drove off. Trying t.o talk to the mother,

little girJ- kept jumping in my face. I pushed her out of my

face, and I got I get a ticket, and my daughter get a

ticket. Now, I got to go to court.

THE COURT: Disturbing the peace?

THE DEFENDANT: No, they gave me a misdemeanor.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: A misdemeanor

THE COURT: BaTIery?

THE PLAINTIFF: He punched the girl in her face.

THE DEFENDANT: Battery, right?

THE COURT: Oh, on the girJ- on that little girl?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes. He punched --

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: I read it

THE PLAINTIEF: a girl in her face.

THE COURT: I read it.

THE PLAINTIFF: So So
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THE DEFENDANT: So now I have another record down

here, which I haven't been in no troubl-e in 15 years since

I've been home.

THE COURT: Fifteen years. Okay.

THE PLAINTIEF: Your

THE DEEENDANT: Out of her mouth --

THE COURT: How ol-d was that girl?

THE DEFENDANT: I don't. know. I donrt know.

THE PLAINTIEE: About lf, Your Honor.

THE DEEENDANT: I don't Know.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Out of her own mouth, one of us got

to be a good person, you already got a felony. That's what I

that's what I hear.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: So when she starts, it's just l-ike

in November. CalJ- police on me, and teII the police I took

her gun.

THE PLAINTIFF: Because he threatened to shoot me.

THE DEFENDANT: They chase

THE COURT: One moment.

THE DEFENDANT: They -- I have the 911 calf

THE COURT: Hang on, ma'am.

THE DEFENDANT: right? They said she to.l-d -- I
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said to her, how would you explain --

THE COURT: Are you registered here?

THE DEFENDANT: What ?

THE COURT: A registered fel-on. You you don't

have felony on you? You have felony on you, don't you?

THE DEEENDANT: I have a feJ_ony, but that was a long

time ago.

THE COURT: Oh, so there -- Martin, are there

certain requirements for a fel-on? Any felony must register?

THE CLERK: It's it's (indiscernible) .

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

THE DEEENDANT: Right.? So they called -- she cal-l-ed

I said to her -- we was in the house, arguing. I said to

her, how would you explain to poJ-ice if I shot myself with

your gun? Ran out the house. Came back in the house, went

went to go get my money. I cal-l-ed the poli-ce on you, ran back

out the house.

When the police pulfed me over, I don't know how

many cars it was. Hands in the air, get out the car. I said,

the gun j-s in the same place where she got it dt, in the

house, in the cl-oset. They took me to a crazy ward hospital.

I got the police report, the 911 ca1ling, where they found the

9un, gun wasn't taken, I didnrt have no gun in my possessi-on.

But stil-1, cafl the police
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THE COURT: Yeah.

THE DEEENDANT: on me. I never threatened that

gir1. Never.

THE COURT: And they didn't they didn't charge

you with a fel-on with a gun in possession?

THE DEFENDANT: I didn't have no gun in my

possession.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: The gun was in the house. They

found it in the house. They had me on cac on Las Vegas

Boul-evard between Cactus and Silverado Ranch, pu11ed over.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEEENDANT: They didn't even search the car.

Put me in handcuffs, took me to the hospital. And her report

again, papers

THE COURT: Now, why would they take you to the

hospita I ?

THE DEEENDANT: They said for safe for safety,

just do a safekeeping. Safekeeping. I'm not crazy. I did 15

years I dld seven years in jai1, I wasn't thinking about

kiJ-Iing myse-l-f . Sure not going to klJ-I mysef f now.

THE PLAINTIFP: YouT HonoT

THE DEFENDANT: She got another report in here,

February 14th. Stated that
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THE COURT: Hang on, hang on, Mom. I'm going to l-et

you respond.

THE DEEENDANT: February 14

THE PLAINTIFF: There's so many -- Your Honor, I

I think I --

THE COURT: And I don't got a1I day, obviously.

THE PLAINTIEE: Yeah. To try to to try to

okay. So what he did --

THE COURT: We're going to sort all this out. You

guys are going to say all this again in much more detail when

you guys testify for the trial-, because --

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: this aj-n't goi-ng to get resofved.

You're going to need at l-east a day probably f or trial- . So is

there a Thursday sometime in February is how far out. In the

meantj-me, we're going to come back quickly, j-n about 30 days.

So I expect you to be working out something with Mom,

flexible, in a safe place, in a public pJ-ace, Chuck E. Cheese,

IHOP or wherever the kids l-ike to go, and give Mom a couple

hours of vi-sitation here and there.

And then you're going to schedule your observation

session downstar-rs. Dad wiII bring Lhem, and the kids will

al-I four of them be interviewed. Itrs going -- with four

kids, it's going to be a few hours, so probably a two hour
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ordeal-. So you're going to meet up downstairs and make your

appointment. Try to get 1t done before schoof starts, because

the kids are more avail-abl-e right now, and t.hey're scrambling

probably, but we'l-.1- make sure you guys get an appointment in

time. We'l-l- set you back in about 30 -- weI1, I thlnk I'm out

(COURT AND CLERK CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: Yeah, they're super busy downstairs.

Let me see. In Lhe meantime, temporary, because of the

substantiation, temporary joint lega1, primary with Dad.

Wel-l-, vi-sitation with Mom, but you -- Mom feels, when she gets

it, she qets her visitation, but you kind of sometimes pulJ-

the strings on that. If you want some set times so you don't

have to get accused by Mom, you give me a two hour block on a

particular day or days, and let me know when you can bring the

kids, and she can have

THE DEEENDANT: I can bring them anytime.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Anytlme.

THE COURT: She got a car, right?

THE DEFENDANT: The way I work --

THE COURT: What are your days off? You work three

days ?

THE PLAINTIEF: Saturdays. I -- I work all- five
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days, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Oh, yourre not. a three day nurse? Three

12 hour shifts?

THE PLAINTIFF: No, I -- I work five days because --

THE COURT: What's your downtime, like your most

THE PLA]NTIFF: I am

THE COURT: GeneralJ-y, like a day off so you can

spend time with your kids.

THE PLAINTIFE: I -- I am home by 3:30 in the

afternoon.

THE COURT: Every day, usual-1y?

THE PLAINTIEF: Every day. Irm off on Saturdays and

Sundays.

THE COURT: You off Sat.urday, Sundays?

THE PLA]NTIFF: Yes .

THE COURT: You do a l-ot of things Saturday,

Sundays? You're going to need -- you drop them off with Mom

for day visits only.

THE DEFENDANT: It's like, this weekend, I didn't

work. Next weekend, I work.

THE COURT: Oh, you work.

THE DEFENDANT: Saturday, not Sunday.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: It's Iike, varies.
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THE PLAINTIFE: Your Honor

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: They go by a list

THE PLAINTIFF: I've tried --

THE DEFENDANT: they go by a list at the job.

THE COURT: You know what? I -- I don't know how

you going to do with the kids and their comfort level- with you

downstai-rs, and they're to be interviewed, and just tel-l- them

three words, telt the truth. Okay? And I need to get back on

that report. So we got to come back as soon as possible.

Martin, okay. Cal-I FMC, see if they're open. And give me a

one hour observation, four kids, and child interviews. This

is 1ike, a long appointment. It's like a two-hour

appointment.

THE CLERK: Observation and chll-d interview?

THE COURT: And observation, yeah. Eour kids. Eour

kids. That's let me see if I got a slot so I can get you

guys

THE PLAINTIFF: Your Honor, he continues to

THE COURT: Timely

THE PLAINTIEF: -- mafign me. It's very diffj-cult,

and that's one of the reasons

THE COURT: Ma'am --

THE PLAINTIEF: I requested --
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THE COURT: Itm not I'm not judging you

THE PLAINTIEE: I know.

THE COURT: and I'm not judging him. I'm

listening. That's all I'm doing rj-ght now is listening. When

I realIy listen is what -- what. I only l-isten to at trial-.

This is divorce court, so the accusations are going to fly

back and forth. I'm trying to just focus on the kids.

THE PLAINTIFF: I just the kids, it's just the

kids, and that's all. f've been trying to see the children

THE COURT: Is your daughter going through a period

where she's disrespecting you?

THE PLAINTIFE: She yes . At

THE COURT: Uh-huh. So she go run to her dad

because she

THE DEFENDANT: She has

THE COURT: -- don't like the rules?

THE DEFENDANT: The the l-ast time she tal-k to

that girl

THE PLAINTIFE: You know, itrs very difficult

THE DEFENDANT: _- was Ihe 21Ih

THE COURT: Hang on.

THE PLAINTIFF: to tal-k, and he constantly is

talkj-ng.

THE COURT: Yeah. I was talking to her, sir.

D-15-s86291-D WTLLTAMS 07122t2019 TRANSCRTpT (SEALED)

vERBATTM REPORTTNG & TRANSCR|pTtON, LLC (520) 303-7356

40

205



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

B

9

10

11

L2

13

I4

15

t6

l1

18

19

20

2I

))

23

24

THE DEFENDANT: Irm sorry.

THE COURT: Yeah. Okay. I know.

THE PLAINTIFF: The l-ast time I had spoken to

Abigail --

THE COURT: Vihat happened? Why was CPS invol-ved?

THE PLAINTIFF: The the incident t.hat. occurred

was it was all orchestrated, Your Honor, and I didn't know

until- after the fact, where my mom --

THE COURT: Beating them with hard objects

THE PLAINTIFF: That

THE COURT: -- dragging them across the room --

THE PLAINTIFF: That is

THE COURT: This is just what I'm reading, ma'am.

And thls one led to a visit to the doctors. And you work i-n

the medical profession

THE PLAINTIFF: What I'm -- I'm sorry. AII- of

this, what you're reading, Your Honor, and I have to go and

get a -- a record of it, Your Honor. I have no idea, no one

I had never taken the kids to the doctor, and no one at

the

THE COURT: You weren't aware

THE PLAINTIFF: kids have never missed schoo.l-

THE COURT: -- he took the child to a doctor?

THE PLAINTIEE: I have not been abl-e to have a
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normal- conversatlon with Herman, the Defendant.

THE COURT: Let's just focus on what happened with

your child going to see a doctor

THE PLAINTIFF: I don't know, Your Honor. Because I

I don't know. He doesn't communlcate.

THE COURT: Did you drag AbigaiJ- by the hair?

THE PLAINTIEF: No, I did not. No, I did not. The

officers were even -- because what it is is that

THE COURT: Did you hit Abigail with a pipe?

THE PLAINTIFF: No, I did not.

THE COURT: Which caused bleeding?

THE PLAINTIFF: No, I did not. Your Honor, I had --

THE COURT: Can you explain why she got bleeding

under your care?

THE PLAINTIEE: I had a an a1J-ergy bracefet. f 'm

severely al-lergic, and I had an allergy bracel-et. And while I

was discipJ-ining her for an incident that occurred when she

let large teenage boys in the house when no adult was there,

disappeared for hours, said it was her business, she can it

happened, j-t happened. So during that partic I was not

there.

THE COURT: So what did you do?

THE PLAINTIFF: So at that point, when I reached to

get her, Your Honor, the bracel-et, because she was moving, the
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bracelet cut her head. But she has they have to change

narrative, because it's it it affects the divorce

process. It affects everything. So they're going to sit

there, and they're going to make all- these stories. Oh, she

beats them with this, and she beats them with that. Itts all

at at his word, with teJ-Iing them, as wel-l- as my mother.

THE COURT: WeIl, CPS ain't got no stake in this --

THE PLAINTIFE: No, but i-t's

THE COURT: they don't know you, they don't know

him.

THE PLAINTIFE: it's what was being told to them,

because even I sent an email I've incl-uded in the records that

said, h"y, I haven't. tal-ked to the kids or seen them, but the

CPS worker says, wefl, the kids says they've been talking to

you and seeing you regularly. And I'm like, that's not true.

THE COURT: Did you grab your mother by her throat?

THE PLAINTIFF: That's not true. Your Honor, that

1s not true. That is not true. My mother --

THE COURT: And nobody --

THE PLAINTIFF: slapped -- Your Honor, my mother

slapped me, scratched my hand, and I pushed her out of my

face. Because we were home, and she came in yelling and

screaming, whil-e myself and the children were there. So al-f

of this was all orchestrated, because he was outside.
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THE COURT: Sorry.

THE PLAINTIEF: It was all orchestrated, Your Honor,

because he was outside, she came in, started yelling and

screaming about me kicking him out, and asking him to leave.

She smacked me, scratched my hand, and I pushed her out of my

face. I did not grab her throat. I did not do any of that.

So it's aIl a Iie, what theyrre sayi-ng.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIEF: So no, I have not spoken

THE COURT: Do you

corporally punish your kids?

THE PLAINTIEF: PaTdon?

THE COURT: Corporal punishment.

THE PLAINTIFF: No, I don't. I wiII take TV for a

month. I took her cell phone, Abigail's ceIl phone for one

year. I took her door off, her phone. I don't beat up on

these kids. I'ff take the game away. I don't beat up on

these ki-ds, as I cl-aim that I beat up on them. I dontt do

that. I don't. I take TV away, I take games away, I took

ceIl phone, I take the door if she s.l-ammed the door

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIFF: stuff like that.. But I don't

what -- what you're claiming.

THE COURT: Okay. How long ago was your appeal
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filed with CPS?

THE PLAINTIFF: It was filed immediately, and I did

have a check on it, and she states that

THE COURT: You got

THE PLAINTIFF: t.here's 12 cases ahead of 1t

THE COURT: (indiscernible) . Yeah.

THE PLAINT]FF: Yes .

THE COURT: You guys got to get your records at DFS.

THE PLAINTIEF: Yes, maram.

THE COURT: Matthew wasn't afraid of anyone in the

home. Ellsha cl-aims he's safe in the home with Dad, and that

he fear -- has a fear of his mother. Abigai-l-, she feared her

mother because of the extreme discipline. And she fears her

mother. And then Herman Williams is a -- 10 years old.

Things changed when Mom got a new boyfriend, Steve (ph).

Herman's saying this. Herman thinks his mother staying at Ms.

Paul-a's (ph) house, which is Steve's mother, but didn't say

anything about whether he's afraid of her or not. Just

just kind of ended it there.

They tal-ked with you? They talked with you, and

they said you presented as very paranoid and emoti-onaIIy

unst.abl-e.

THE PLAINTIEF: Your Honor, I was

THE COURT: How long did they interview you since
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the incident?

THE PLAINTIFF: I -- I went there on the same day

that I came home and he was emptying my house and taklng the

chi fdren .

THE COURT: That

THE PLAINTIFF: And I went on the same day. Of

course I'm going to be I mean, be -- because of what's

going on. And al-l of this started when I asked him for

divorce.

THE COURT: You asked him?

THE PLAINTIFF: I asked hi-m for a di-vorce. I asked

him to move out. I asked him to do al-l of this, because I was

just exhausted and tired of the sltuation. And all- of a

sudden, my kids are unsafe. And al-l of a sudden, my kids are

this, and afl of a sudden, my kids are that.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIFF: ft's him and my mom.

THE COURT: But I don't know if CPS talked to the

doctor. Did you tal-k to that doctor? Were you aware of that

doctor ?

THE PLAINTIFF: No, ma'am, I was not. There was

there was and on this particular incident, Your Honor,

happened Febu happened March of 20 I'm going to say

2018. March of
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THE COURT: '19.

THE PLAINTIFE: No, Do, no. March of 2018. That is

when the incident where her her head got that cut, March of

2018. Since then, I mean, March of that's when j-t

occurred. March of 2078, when f was in Jamaica, and then I

came back.

THE COURT: I 'm reading the records

THE PLAINTIFF: That's what I'm saying, Your Honor.

It's not being truthful. Because that incident that your

current talking about is March of 2018

THE COURT: This all started February --

THE PLAINTIFF: No. The incident where t.he gash on

the head. The

THE COURT: You got the medi-cal records? You're

goi-ng to go get me the medica1 records, right, Dad?

THE DEFENDANT: The that incident with her head

bust open

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE DEFENDANT: it was in August -- f mean, not

in August. It was in 2011. I was in New York. It wasnrt

it wasn't in '18, it was 2011 .

THE COURT: I see. But

THE DEFENDANT: When I cal-l-ed home

THE COURT: But this 2019 stuff related to to

D-15-s86291-D WTLL|AMS O7122t2019 TRANSCRTPT (SEALED)

VERBAT|M REPORTTNG & TRANSCRtPT|ON, LLC (520) 303-7356

47

212



1

Z

3

4

5

6

1

B

9

10

11

t2

r-3

l4

15

t6

l1

18

79

20

2l

22

23

24

what ?

THE DEEENDANT: The 2079?

THE PLAINTIFF: Nothing.

THE COURT: The 2019 stuff.

THE PLAINTIEF: Because I didn't touch my chil-dren.

THE DEFENDANT: It's related to now.

THE COURT: Yeah. They saw the scar on her head.

THE DEFENDANT: And the all the records is here

except for except for that. But

THE COURT: So why -- the substantiation was for

what, phys j-caJ- abuse on the chil-dren?

THE DEEENDANT: Physi,caJ- abuse and mentally abused.

THE COURT: Okay. And then you did -- you took --

CPS recommended they go for counseling. You took them to

counse J- ing

THE DEFENDANT: ft was the doctor referred. The

Dr. Jackson (ph) that they had --

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: thei-r physical doctor

THE COURT: And you are

THE DEFENDANT: she referred alf of them.

THE COURT: in the process of finding a new

counseling for the children?

THE DEEENDANT: Yeah. That's what -- we1l, she
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l-et me go back. Abigall go back every three months. She go

back October, and she'l-l- let me know.

THE PLAINTIFF: So this is what I'm saying, Your

Honor. This particul-ar incident with the head happened three

years ago

THE COURT: Ri-ght .

THE PLA]NTIFE

headaches and dizziness

three years after.

THE DEFENDANT

THE PLAINTIFF

THE DEFENDANT

-- but all of a sudden, I'm having

and blah, blah, b1ah, three al-most

She been having headaches every day.

Two years -- stop. Stop.

But if shers not home, she don't

know.

THE COURT: Let Mom finish, Dad. I let you tal-k.

So l-et Mom f inish.

THE PLAINTIEE: So a1l of this, Your Honor, thi-s --

THE COURT: (Indiscernible) .

THE PLAINTIFE: is what I rm saying. Everyt.hing

was fine. He did threaten the the only way they decided

to take him in was because he did repeat to them that he did

say he was going to shoot himsel-f. And that's the only reason

they put him on a 12 hour psych hold.

THE COURT: That's probabJ,y right.

THE PLAINTIFF: That's the onJ-y reason. Okay? And
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then after that, I asked him for a divorce, that. he needed to

l-eave. I packed his stuff, put them downstairs. I told him

I'm giving him until March 1st to move out, because I cou1dn't

do it anymore. He did take my gun again, okay, and then he

did threaten me. I was flke brought down, I was Iike, I'm not

going to have a conversation wj-th you with a foaded weapon.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIFF: So he has constantJ-y held me

emotionally hostage. I don't sit there and yes, I did say

to the the daughter, to Abigail

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIFF: I said, you know what? I don't

want you to marry someone like your father. I di-d say that.

That is the only thing I've ever said, because I said, you

know what? I don't want you to have the same struggles I had.

And I sat there, and I explained it to her. I sat there and I

explained it. to her, because I've gone through a lot. I donrt

sit there, and I don't have a conversation that's, you know,

negative and oh, your father did this, or your fa f've

never done that. Never done that.

THE COURT: The kids shoul-d probably have their own

attorney, also, Iike a guardian ad litem, because Mom and Dad

are fighting, and they got, you know, their issues they got to

worry about. But maybe I'm thinking about it, but l-et me

D-15-586291-D WTLL|AMS 07122t2019 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)

vERBATTM REPORTTNG & TRANSCRTPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

50

215



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

B

9

10

11

t2

13

L4

15

l6

l1

1B

19

20

2t

22

)?

24

l-ook at the observation report first, and see if I can get an

attorney appointed for the kids, to take them out of this

conflict between both of you. Between now and when we come

back to court; number one, did we pick a court dat.e and when

we're supposed to come back? That September was a bad one.

(COURT AND CLERK CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: AII right . You guys are going to go

sign up downstairs,' number one. Number two, you're going to

bring the kids for the interview and the observation for July

30th at what time?

THE CLERK: 1:00 p.m.

THE COURT: 1:00 p.m. And then they're going to

start school, and then you guys are going to come back to

court. The kids go to schoof, and we'fl bring you in on

August 28th at what time?

THE CLERK: 10:00 a.m. It's a busy morning.

THE COURT: Oh, no.

(COURT AND CLERK CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE PLAINTIFE: I'm sorry, when you say --

THE COURT: Monday morning, I'm going to put you in.

You like a Monday or a Tuesday morning at B:45 a.m.

THE PLAINTIEE: Monday is fine, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And, Dad, you' re gol-ng to get the kids

to school?
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THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: Can you be here by 8:45?

THE DEEENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: Or 9:00?

THE DEFENDANT: I can be here.

THE COURT: Okay. B:45. Mom -- Momrs okay with

Monday. You come on Monday, August 26th at 8:45. You're

going to have to speed read the report. Okay? And -- but

we're going to t.al-k about the report. Between now and the

next in the next basically four weeks, I want Mom to have a

weekly vj-sitation with the children. And fet me see. Usually

it's onJ-y been f or a coupJ-e hours. And, Dad, you work?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: So who watches? The grandmother?

THE DEFENDANT: Grandmother, the boys be with me,

and daughter be at home.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEEENDANT: But usual-Iy, they be with me now.

Because I won't leave them al-l- on my daughter at one time.

Because she 14, but I don't l-eave them -- they stay with me

every --

THE COURT: Oh, yeah.

THE DEFENDANT: -- day.

THE COURT: Yeah.
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THE DEEENDANT: So they be with me every day. Days

that my mother-in-l-aw's home

THE COURT: The boys

THE DEEENDANT: -- which is on Friday --

THE COURT: go with you to work?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. Every day.

THE PLAINTIEF: Your Honor, I I offered --

THE COURT: In the tow truck?

THE DEEENDANT: Huh?

THE COURT: In the Chevy truck?

THE DEFENDANT: In the flatbed.

THE COURT: In your flatbed --

THE DEFENDANT: Back seat. Well, it's not my

fl-atbed --

THE PLAINTIFF: Your

THE DEEENDANT: it belongs to another guy. I'm

working and driving his flatbed, because the insurance got

cancel-Ied on the truck.

THE PLAINTIFE: Your Honor

THE DEEENDANT: So by the insurance got cancelled,

they threw my --

THE COURT: It's a four seater, sj-x seater, what?

THE DEEENDANT: IT's extended cab.

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

D-15-586291-O WtLL|AMS O712212019 TRANSCRTPT (SEALED)

vERBAT|M REPORTTNG & TRANSCR|PT|ON, LLC (520) 303-73s6

53

218



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

o

9

10

11

t2

13

l4

15

1,6

t1

18

19

20

2l

22

23

24

THE DEFENDANT: So it's front seat, and you can hol-d

f our in the back. Seat.belts in the back.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF: I offered to help with -- see if we

can put the kids in summer camp.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIEF: Nothing.

THE COURT: Nothing?

THE PLAINTIFF: I said bot.h of us come together,

because when I spoke to t.hem --

THE COURT: You mean Iike YMCA or the Boys and Girl-s

CIub

THE PLAINTIFF: Right. Because when I spoke to

them, there was a camp open, and I spoke to the kids, and

they're J-ike, oh, we only went to --

THE COURT: Eor eight hours a day, tagging along

with Dad --

THE PLAINTIFF: YCS .

THE COURT: is probably

THE PLAINTIFF: And this is what I'm saying. His

hatred is just it's not in the best kids' best interests

THE COURT: Okay. HoId on, hol-d on

THE PLAINTIFE: -- bCCAuSC
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THE DEFENDANT: She asked me about the camp. I told

her I texted her back, and I said, you pay for it. Since I

had the kids since March

THE COURT: Oh, so you

THE DEEENDANT: she haven't gave no money for

those kids. I'm not going to take on another bill. I just

took on another bil-I, my daughter's mouth, with her braces in

her mouth.

THE COURT: Depends on what the text messages say.

Dj-d you of fer to pay for them?

THE DEEENDANT: It she

THE PLAINTIFF: I -_

THE DEFENDANT: She said, we both should pay for it,

and I said, no. You offered, you pay for it. And I Ieft it

al-one.

THE PLAINTIFF: YouT HonoT

THE DEFENDANT: Hang my phone up, didn't answer her

no more.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIFE: Your Honor, I did say, can we put

because when I spoke to them, that was the last time I spoke

to them. I sald, hey, they said they're home playing video

games, or they're

THE COURT: How you -- who's going to pay for it?
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THE PLAINTIFF: WeIl, I said -- I said to him, both

of us. I think we both shoul-d pay f or i

THE COURT: Thatrs why you canrt agree, so you cantt

agree.

THE PLAINTIEF: Because then that's what I said,

h.y, can we both pay for them, because having them either at

home

THE COURT: And you work a l_ot of

THE PLAINTIFF: I didn't know that they were

THE COURT: shifts right now --

THE PLAINTIFE: I work a lot of shifts right now,

and I said, I think we both should pay for it, because I canrt

afford it. I'm paying for the truck he's driving now, I'm

paying for it.

THE COURT: That's going to be a big issue with

THE PLAINTIEF: So I can't

THE COURT: the divorce

THE PLAINTIFF: So I can't afford to pay for

anything else, but at the same time, f'm -- to have the kids

then sit at home

THE COURT: Kids being towed around

THE PLAINTIFF: isn't

THE COURT: in a tow truck --

THE PLAINTIEF: I have a coupJ-e
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THE COURT: the last days of summer is probably

not what a normal ki-d should expect f or summer vacat j-on.

THE DEFENDANT: We go

THE COURT: So you're either going to have to

provide day care, but the grandmother's there, watchi-ng the 14

year old, correct?

THE PLAINTIFE: NO.

THE DEFENDANT: She's watch -- no.

THE COURT: But she canrt handl-e three more younger

ones ?

THE DEFENDANT: No, the grandmother's off twice a

week. This week she's off three times. So the three times

that she' s of f , they're al-I in the house.

THE COURT: They're all in the house with her.

THE DEFENDANT: When she's -- when she works, she

gets out at. 2:00

THE COURT: How many days a week then you take them

around i-n the truck?

THE DEFENDANT: I take them -- I -- I -- I go pick

them up in the house quarter to 2:00, when I go pick up the

grandmother. So they get one ride all the way down to BIue

Diamond, and alf the way back up to the house, back in the

house with the grandmother. She gets off every day at 2:00.

THE COURT: In the afternoon?
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THE DEEENDANT: In the afternoon. Because I -- I

flex my hours.

THE COURT: So the kids are with you untlL 2200?

THE DEEENDANT: No, they -- I don't come outside

until- 11 : 0 0 every day .

THE COURT: How many days a week you take the kids

with you?

THE DEFENDANT: Maybe twice.

THE COURT: Two times a week --

THE PLAINTIEE: Now he's changing his story --

THE COURT: Two days a week?

THE DEFENDANT: Two days a week.

THE COURT: They run around in the truck wi-th you?

THE DEFENDANT: YCAh.

THE COURT: And you got air conditioning in there?

THE DEFENDANT: Air condit.ion. It's a brand new

truck. It's a brand --

THE COURT: Oh

THE DEFENDANT: -- new flatbed. Alr conditioning

and everything.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Windows is tinted.

THE COURT: And what days are those usually?

THE DEEENDANT: It depends. Like, Friday, they're
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coming, because they know I get paid on Eriday.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: So Friday, all- of them wil-I come.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: But most tikely it'd be Matthew with

me every day, and then when the grandmother gets off at 2:00,

we pick her up from work at Walmart, then they go inside and

go play video games with the rest of them.

THE PLAINTIFF: YouT

THE COURT: Is there a McDonal-drs near your houses?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Or a Chuck E. Cheese, or some

THE PLAINTIEF: There' s a -- there' s a McDonal-d' s .

The Chuck E. Cheese is a bit far out, but there is a --

THE COURT: Which side of town -- what intersection

you five

THE PLAINTIEF: Southern Highlands.

THE COURT: And you?

THE DEFENDANT: I live on the north side.

THE COURT: North town?

THE DEEENDANT: Uh-huh (affirmative). North side.

THE COURT: Oh, my gosh.

THE PLAINTIFF: He moved all the way up to Craig,

Your Honor, so it it doesn't even facil-itate trying to
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to Sdy, okay, meet

THE COURT: Moved to North Las Vegas.

THE PLAINTIFF: -- halfway, because he moved so far

away.

THE COURT: First of all, they going to start school-

in your zonet in North Las Vegas.

THE DEFENDANT: WeIl-, I tried -- I tri-ed to l-eave

them in the schools where they was dt, because I was taking

them there.

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE DEEENDANT: f t's on the school- now. I did the

the

THE COURT: Well, that's far.

THE DEEENDANT: address verification --

THE COURT: That's a far ride.

THE DEEENDANT: I did it I did the whole rest of

s chool-

THE COURT: You go off and enroll them in your --

THE DEFENDANT: I did i-t. I did the -- the whole

rest of the year, because I wasn't going to take them out of

one

THE COURT: Oh, I know. But now they're going to

start in your zone for this time, until- we go to trial- in

February.
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THE DEFENDANT: I mean

THE COURT: You're going to have to you got

prlmary care. I hate for kids to switch schools, Iose all

their friends and cl-assmates

THE DEFENDANT: That's why that's why I tried to

Ieave them there

THE COURT: And then if we go t.o trial-, and then if

you get custody, great, they stay in that same school-. If Mom

gets custody, they go back to Southern Highlands, or I don't

know if we can do a 50/50 custody because you moved clear

across town from her. So I don't know. But for now, you got

primary, so you'II have to enroff them in your school-

THE DEFENDANT: Al-I right.

THE COURT: 1n your zone. And have You

registered them, or kept them in the same schools?

THE DEFENDANT: f've registered them for this year

coming

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: in the same schoofs they was at.

THE COURT: Oh, they did. Man, you're going to

THE DEFENDANT: But I don't know yet. I don't know

yet, because they saj-d they have to wait until -- wait until-

school start.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.
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THE DEFENDANT: And then they got to go to District

11 because that's the zone that we in.

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE DEFENDANT: So they didn't send me no papers yet

in the mail sayi-ng they dj-dn't accept them --

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: But I did all the paperwork. Herman

supposed t.o go

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE DEFENDANT: at the end of this month

THE COURT: They don't l-et the school district,

they do their own thi-ng, so I can't order them to go whatever

school- they go to. So either go in your schoof zone, or if

you wanted to leave them in your ol-d zone, that's a heck of a

drive, unJ-ess they bus there

THE DEFENDANT: The Dor they're not going to bus

them. The only reason I did that, because my mother-in-Iaw

stil-l works in Walmart. So she got to go to work everyday, so

THE COURT: In over there anyway?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, on Blue Diamond. So that's

why I ; ust l-ef t them there .

THE COURT: That's nice of her to help.

THE DEFENDANT: I pick everybody back up.
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THE COURT: Okay. Al-I right. I ;ust need to do a

temporary visitation pIan. I'm way overdue. No lunch, and my

tri-al- ' s supposed to start 15 minutes ago .

THE DEFENDANT: Sorry.

THE COURT: No, it's not your fault. But, you know,

I take time with every case. That's why you had to wait. I

take time to l-isten to both of you, but I'm not judging either

one of you today. That day wiJ-J- come in February. But I'l-l-

bring it back and see how the kids do with Mom, observation.

You got to keep them in counseling.

ObviousJ-y, this whol-e medication issue, I would say

a parent has a right to raise their chil-dren and make these

decisi-ons, but if a doctor says it's medicaJ-Iy necessary, you

canrt override that, or thatrs going to be that's -- I

mean, that's that's going to be question of fact. If

you know, I got parents for religious reasons, they don't want

therr kids to have bl-ood transfusions, and so sometlmes,

Courts override that to save a kid's Iife, I guess, or is it

one of those type of situation that is it optional, then I

need to hear it from the doctor, if it's optional that this

medication is optional, and you t.ry other t.hings.

So going around for a second opinion, there's

nothing wrong with that, and you got to you got to keep me

apprised of that, see what's going on with that. AII the kids
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are goi-ng to counseling?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, they aJ-I all- go but

THE COURT: So can you get a fetter from their

counselor or counselors, and tell- me how many sessions they've

gone to. Not what they talk about, that's confidentlal. But

how many sessions they've gone to, and how many more sessions

they might need?

THE DEEENDANT: All right.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF: Your Honor, I did do a -- a motion

last week --

THE COURT: So that's an order --

THE PLAINTIFE: to request

THE COURT: Dad wil-I get me counsel-or --

THE PLAINTIFE: right, to request mandatory

counseling for the chil-dren, based on just the conversations

I tve

THE COURT: Rlght. Now --

THE PLAINTIFF: -- had with them --

THE COURT: you probably woufd need to go through

uni f ication counsel- ing with ei-t.her two, three, or f our of the

chil-dren. They that costs 150 a session or more. I'm not

don't quote me on it. But I can give you the list of

providers, and you can start Iooking at their resumes, and
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then

THE PLAINTIFF: And does it

THE COURT: tell me who you want

THE PLAINTIFF: it's not through the --

THE COURT: to go with. There's people

THE PLAINTIFF: through my insurance?

THE COURT: Iike Donna Wilburn, NicoJ-as Ponzo,

Donna Gosnel-l-, Cl-audia Schwartz, Katie Steinkamp, those people

there do reunification. Give them the l-ist for reunification.

That is separate from the chil-dren's individual- counseling.

THE PLAINTIEF: Okay.

THE COURT: But this is a pay.

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: So per session, and I don't know how

many sessions it woul-d take. Yourre looking at about a couple

hundred a session. I don't know. You go price it out, you

cal-l- them. Give them the provider l-ist now. And then also,

on the provider list, there's a col-umn that says is this

the one can never find -- I'l-l- search providers. That's

the one. Therers a column, it says reunification. That's the

cofumn you want to be in.

THE PLAINTIEE: Okay.

THE COURT: You see these col-umns? There's a chart.

THE PLAINTIFE: Thank you.
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THE COURT: Third from the right. You see that?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes .

THE COURT: Is that a yes?

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes .

THE COURT: Call- them up, how much you charge, cash

pay basis, and --

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: -- when can you make your first

appointment. And --

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: -- I will tell Dad that he has to he

must cooperate and brj-ng them to these therapeutic

reunificati-on counseling. That's for Mom and the kids. The

kids that you that you enroll them with, that's for their

individual- counseling. You f ol-Iow?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: So Mom's going to pay her own

reunj-f ication with the kids. Coul-d be one, two, three, or

four.

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: I know for sure probably the !4 and the

10. The other ones are fine.

THE PLAINTIFF: Well-, iL's the actuall-y, iL's the
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THE COURT: It said Matthew wasn't scared --

THE PLAINTIFF: -- Matthew

THE COURT: of you

THE PLAINTIEF: No, that's Herman.

THE COURT: Herman was, Abigail was, and I don't

know they said about ot.her -- Elisha didn'L make any

statements. But look, I only go with what's on the records.

THE PLAINTIFE: I understand.

THE COURT: And I'm trying to help. So when you --

if you if your kids mean more than anything, You set aside

aIl your priorities, financially, and you pay for the

reunification counselor.

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: And that's going to expect cooperation

from the Dad, at least to bring them to appointments.

THE PLAINTIEE: Okay.

THE COURT: And, Dad, you're welcome to talk to them

and tefl them, I'm the dad, you need anything from me? I can

give you background of what's going on. And you can send them

your paperwork, you can ask them -- ask Judge Moss for the CPS

records, we'1I email it to them. We work -- they work with

the courts, we work with them. But you pay for it'

THE PLAINTIEF: Okay.

THE DEEENDANT: Can I just ask you one question?

D-15-586291-D WTLLIAMS 0712212019 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)

VERBAT|M REPORTTNG & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

67

232



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

8

9

10

11

l2

13

l4

15

16

71

1B

19

20

2l

22

23

24

THE COURT: Uh-huh. I know you got your hands fulI

with four kids, but you got to make time for these sesslons.

THE DEEENDANT: It's not the point of the time. I

can make the time.

THE COURT: Good.

THE DEFENDANT: I don't want to have -- don't cal-l-

me the day before and teII me I have to be here tomorrow.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Because then it itrs not going to

happen. I just can't do that.

THE COURT: Mom, when you set these appointments

out, they're at feast two weeks out.

THE PLAINTIFE: OkaY.

THE COURT: You have a -- you use a phone pretty

well-?

THE DEFENDANT: MY cell Phone?

THE COURT: Ce.l-l Phone.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: AppCJ-ose A-p-p-c-l-o-s-e. I want you

aII to use AppC1ose. There's a cafendar function. You plug

in the calendar

THE DEEENDANT: A what?

THE COURT: and then you check it, and it'II send

you alert appointments at. So Put
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THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: it in the AppClose cafendar.

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay? You could fol-}ow up al-so with a

l-ive text through AppCJ-ose. You text Dad through AppCl-ose.

Check the calendar, I put an appointment i-n there for me and

the kids.

THE PLAINTIFF: Can I

THE COURT: Okay?

THE PLAINTIFF: Can I be notj-fied, because as I

said, I don't know what' s medicalJ-y go j-ng on. Can I be

notified? He must l-et me know what is medically going on with

these children, because I don't know. I don't know if t.hey're

being taken to doctors

THE COURT: You do have

THE PLAINTIEF: I cover

THE COURT: joint legal- custody, so you have a

ri,qht to know about their schooling and their medical.

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: So what that means, talk to a lawyer

about it.

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay. I

THE COURT: You do have rights to know, but you

don't. have rights to interfere with their counseling.
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THE PLAINTIFE: Okay.

THE COURT: Right now, Dad's got primary, so he

takes the l-ead on making appoi-ntments

THE PLAINTIFF: Uh-huh (affirmative) .

THE COURT: selecting the doctors. But you have

a right to the medical- records

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: as the parent.

THE PLAINTIFE: Okay.

THE COURT: School records, You'11 be li-sted as an

emergency contact, obviously, and as a non-custodial- Parent.

THE PLAINTIFF: Uh-huh (affirmative) .

THE COURT: And you have a right to talk to the

teachers as the parent

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: -- and get your own campus portal- and

aIl- that.

THE PLAINTIFE: I -- I do have that, so I -- I -- I

keep abreast of

THE COURT: Okay. I'm limited on time.

THE PLAINTIFF: Sorry. Just. one more thi-ng

THE COURT: The visitation you're going to have

to hang on. We're bringing you back on August -- a month --

THE PLAINTIFF: 26Lh.
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THE COURT: -- or four weeks. So for the next four

weeks, I want you to -- which is easier for you, Saturdays or

Sundays? Saturdays or Sundays avaifabiJ-ity, Dad?

THE DEFENDANT: They go to church Sundays.

THE COURT: Huh?

THE DEFENDANT: I'd prefer Saturdays. They go to

church on Sunday.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: So I'd say Saturdays --

THE COURT: So Saturdays --

THE PLAINTIEF: And I go to church on Saturdays

THE COURT: what.'s their -- Saturdays from J-ike,

I don't know, 11:00 to 1:00, they can meet for l-unch

somewhere, and --

THE PLAINTIFF: I go to church on

THE COURT: you can drop them off?

THE PLAINTIFF: I go to church on Saturdays, Your

Honor.

THE COURT: What time is church?

THE PLAINTIFF: 9:00 in the morning.

THE COURT: You'Il- be done by when?

THE PLAINTIEF: 2;00 in the

THE COURT: 12:00?

THE PLAINTIEF: in the afternoon.
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THE COURT: 2:00?

THE PLAINTIFF: Uh-huh (affirmative) .

THE COURT: That's a long church.

THE PLAINTIFE: Seventh Day Adventist.

THE COURT: You're not wilJ-ing to give up some

church to go see your kids?

THE PLAINTIEE: They used to come with me to church,

Your Honor, but I coul-d make some changes.

THE COURT: You got a problem with her church, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do. She hasn't been to

church since they since them kids been gone.

THE PLAINTIFF: How you know that?

THE DEEENDANT: Because

THE COURT: Maybe she's going -- maybe she's going

back up to church aga j-n.

THE DEFENDANT: That's what that's what we goLng

to go through, Your Honor, the excuses.

THE PLAINTIFF: Oh, God.

THE COURT: I don't need you guys to fight

THE DEFENDANT: I CA

THE COURT: I just want to ask if you got a

problem with dropping the kids off at her church, and they can

sit with her in church.

THE DEFENDANT: NO
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THE COURT: But I donrt like kids sitting in church

for five hours.

THE DEEENDANT: NO

THE PLAINTIFF: I --

THE DEEENDANT: Nah. I mean

THE PLAINTIFE: I woul-dn't I wouf dn't put them --

THE COURT: Are you willing to give up church to go

have time with your kids? You guys are 1ike, kids yourselves,

can't f igure i-t out.

THE DEFENDANT: I said I woul-d do Sundays. I will

do Sundays, I will do Saturdays, but

THE COURT: You told me Sundays they got church.

THE DEFENDANT: Sundays Sunday, they get out

of church at 12:00.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: 12 : 00 . They go from 9: 30 to 12:00

THE COURT: Then she don't do church on -- her

church is on Saturdays, so Sundays are good. So 1:00?

THE DEEENDANT: I have no problem.

THE COURT: So they go to Sunday church with you,

they get out at L2:00, and they'd be ready to go, or do you

got to change out of the Sunday cJ-othes?

THE DEFENDANT: No, they wear their regular cl-othes.
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THE COURT: They ready to go? Okay. 1:00

somewhere, or 12:30? Where y'aIJ- want to meet? This is just

every Sunday untif we come back to court.

THE DEFENDANT: WC]I

THE COURT: It's a order

THE DEFENDANT: I tell you what

THE COURT: so Dad will have to bring them. And

so where's your church at?

THE DEFENDANT: They church is right by her house.

Right. at Bl-ue Diamond, at Herman and Matthew's school-.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEEENDANT: So they can go to McDonal-d's

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEFENDANT: at Walmart, right on Bfue

Diamond.

THE COURT: That's where you're goi-ng to go,

McDonal,d' s . Inside the Walmart

THE PLAINTIEE: Can we do

THE DEFENDANT : No, it ' s out.s ide the Wal-mart .

THE COURT: The McDonafd's

THE PLAINTIEF: CAN

THE COURT: outside t.he Wa]mart?

THE DEFENDANT: It's on BIue Diamond and Rainbow.

THE PLAINTIFF: Can we do McDonald's and Southern
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Highlands, Your Honor, because then it's by their school. To

do Walmart, it's going the opposite direction, away from the

church. So there's a waf there's a there's a McDonafd's

THE COURT: That's what he sa j-d, is the Wal-mart by

your house.

THE PLAINTIFF: No, the Walmart is going the

opposite direction with that McDonal-d's. Where the kids'

schooJ- are, where they go to church, there's a --

THE COURT: What does school have to do with you

seeing them --

THE PLAINTIEF: That's where the church --

THE COURT: on Sundays?

THE PLAINTIFE: No, that's where their church is.

Their church is by their -- in their school.

THE COURT: Oh, he don't know which McDonald's?

THE PLAINTIEF: So there's a McDonald's two blocks

down the road on Southern Highlands.

THE COURT: From the church?

THE PLAINT]EE: FrOM thc ChUTCh.

THE COURT: Your church?

THE PLAINTIFF: He doesn't go. He they go with

my mom.

THE DEFENDANT: And the reason I say Walmart,
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because I go sit inside Wafmart, there j-n McDonal-d's. It

don't make no sense for me to drive al-l- the way back across to

North Town

THE COURT: So you can get your grocery shopping and

everything in?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: So you still have a --

THE DEFENDANT: So that's why I say they can go to

the Ir4cDonafd's right by Walmart. I have no problem with it.

Why then I drop them there, then I got to go aII the way up

back up that way to get him, when I could stay

THE COURT: And is it three or four?

THE DEEENDANT: there in the store. Huh?

THE COURT: Is it three kids or four kids?

THE DEFENDANT: It's four kids.

THE COURT: They go with their mom for two hours.

THE DEFENDANT: Every Sunday.

THE COURT: That's the one. It.'s going to be 72:30

or 1:00?

THE DEFENDANT: It could be 12230.

THE COURT: 12:30 to 2:30 every Sunday until- we get

back to court.

THE DEEENDANT: T2:30

THE COURT: And Dad can do his grocery shopping and
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get his errands done . L2:30 to 2:30. And you guys are going

to text each other on the AppClose. Okay? Regular texts. If

there's an emergency -- you talk about. the klds only. If you

talk about something e1se, criticizing them about money, you

did this to me, did that, you got a boyfriend, whatever

that better not be in here. If you do, you violate my

behavior order, which I'm going to sign right now. Thls is

what 1t fooks 1ike to me. Six-page behavj-or order.

You violate one of these, f 'm groing to put you in

jail. I coul-d if I wanted to, if you did it on purpose, to

harass me or waste my time j-n court. If they got to come back

and say, Iook, I got this picture I'm sorry, I got this

audio recording, if you come around each other -- by the way,

I'm goi-ng to authorize it. Turn the recorder on your phone,

put in your pocket.

I want no more he said, she said and drama. If he

say -- if he's calling you names, or you calling him names,

better have it on recording. I'm not going to hear none of

it, he said, she said. Or video. If they're get.ting in your

face, go ahead, video it, because you need that evidence.

Because we find ouL who the l-iar is, come here in my

courtroom.

THE PLAINTIFF: I do have video

THE COURT: So you have a right to audio and video
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record. Preferably dlscreetly. You don't want it to cause

more drama in front of the kids. I don't know what they've

been exposed to.

THE PLAINTIEF: But I do have audj_o recordings

aJ-ready, Your Honor.

THE COURT: But yourre supposed to be cj_vil_, and you

drop the kids off and you go, and say, I'1I be back, Dad'ff be

back in two hours. And you go buy them l-unch, McDonald's play

Pl-ace whatever, and spend time wlth them. Now, you don't plan

on leaving the premises, are you? Or you're going

THE PLAINTIEF: Yes

THE COURT: You're supposed --

THE PLAINTIFF: I mean, your Honor, there's

nothing -- there's a park there. Therers nothi-ng there except

McDonal-d's and a Wa]mart.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIEE: There's nothing there to entertaln a

child for two hours. There's Mountain's Edge park that's a

block up the road.

(COURT AND CLERK CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE PLAINTIEF: There's a there's a Mountainrs

Edge Park one bl-ock north of -- west of McDonal-d's

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE PLAINTIFF: that I woul_d take them to.
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THE COURT: You can take them to the park. I'If

authorize you to take them to the park, but get them back in

two hours --

THE PLAINTIPE: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: flat. Don't be late

THE PLAINTIFF: Yes.

THE COURT: and don't be late. She not there by

1:00, go home. You donrt know where she is. She's MIA. Go

home j-f she's not there by 1:00. You be there at 12:30, on

time.

THE PLAINTIFE: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: You get your two hours every Sunday

untj-J, we come back to court. And you bring them back promptly

at the McDonafd's. But you're free to go wherever. You got a

ua!

THE PLAINTIFF: Okay.

THE COURT: and you got fit four kids in

there ?

THE PLAINTIFE: Yes. ft's a truck.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIFE: You said --

THE DEFENDANT: I want to stipulate one thing. No

house.

THE COURT: Every Sunday.
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THE DEEENDANT: No house.

THE COURT: Not going to her house.

THE DEFENDANT: Not going to her house.

THE COURT: There a guy living in there?

THE DEEENDANT: Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF: There's no guy living in my house,

Your Honor. I live by myself

THE COURT: He said, she said. So I don't know.

THE PLAINTIFF: So that's what I'm saying

THE DEEENDANT: f have pictures.

THE PLAINTIFF: So he's stalking me

THE COURT: Survelffance pictures?

THE DEEENDANT: Yep.

THE PLAINTIFF: Stalking me. I have no one living

in my house. I have people who visit --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIEF: -- but I have no l-ive in

THE COURT: For the -- until- the next court date,

not your house.

THE PLAINTIFF: Thatrs -- that's fine, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'm noL judging you, ma'am, but

THE PLAINTIEF: He needs to stop stalking me. But

one more thing, you said to gto downstairs to sign up for what

exact 1 y ?
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THE CLERK: I rl-l- take care of it. Step out, we got

to go

THE COURT: Marvin got you guys. Wait

THE CLERK: to trj-a.l-. Trial's waiting outside,

Judge.

THE COURT:

paperwork.

for your paperwork. Wait for your

(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 1 :58 : 16)

ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and

correctly transcribed the digital proceedings in the

above-entitled case to the best of my abiJ-ity.

/s/ Ni-ta Painter
Nita Painter
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA MONDAY, AUGUST 26l 2019

PROCEEDINGS

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 09:00:13)

THE COURT: Thj-s is seafed case 58629L, Nadine

THE PLAINTIFF: YCS .

THE COURT: and Herman?

THE DEFENDANT: YCS.

THE COURT: Counsef, your appearance and your bar

number.

MR. TOTI: Your Honor, Frank Toti, bar number 5804,

f or the Plai-ntif f .

THE COURT: Are you retained?

MR. TOTI: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: Let's swear the parties in before we

begin.

THE CLERK: Please raise your right hands. Do you

and each of you solemnly swear the testimony you're about to

give in this action shal-l- be the truth, the whole truth, and

nothing but the truth, so help you, God?

THE PLAINTIFF: I do.

THE CLERK: SiT?

THE DEFENDANT: Sorry. Yes .

THE COURT: AII right. Did everybody get a chance
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to read the chil-dren interviews?

MR. TOTI: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: It's a bit of a sulnmary. The kids have

stated that the Mom physically discipllnes them. Let me see.

I think particularly the girl. She's !4, and there's a 10,

nine, and a si-x year old. Okay. So I don't -- based on this,

where do we proceed?

MR. TOTI: Your Honor

THE COURT: This is a brand new divorce case.

MR. TOTI: Your Honor, this is set for trial in

February.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. PULITZER: At the initial hearing, based upon

some of the al-Iegat.ions that were set forth, Your Honor, out

of an abundance of caution, Eave the Defendant temporary

primary physical custody, and gave my client a couple of hours

a week on Sundays.

THE COURT: Yeah, two hours. I 12:00 to 2:00 or

something like that.

MR. TOTI: The y€s, Judge.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. TOTI: And the al-Iegations stem from an issue

and concern between my client and her mother. However, no

charges have been fi-J-ed, no charges are pending, and there i-s
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nothing active, even with CPS. I spoke with the caseworker,

and they had the concerns that are set forth in the chil-d

interview. Their concern was, is this a physical abuse

circumstance, or is this an improper physical discipline of

the chil-dren.

And based upon the chil-dren's comments, and based

upon my communication with the caseworker, it is clearly a

circumstance where upbringing and culture have a play in

physical discipJ-ine of a chil-d. I've expJ-ained to my cl-ient

what the current status of the faw in Nevada is, which of

course is you can spank a chifd on the butt only, with an open

hand. You can't leave any type of a mark --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. TOTI: and it cannot be again, anywhere but

the buttocks. As you can read from the child interviews, it

tafks about the children being basicafly anything that my

client could grab near the chi-Idren at the time was used to

discipli-ne the chil-dren.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. TOTI : Again, I rve tal-ked to my cl-ient about

that, and she has now a clear understanding of what the rules

aref and wilf not l-et anything like that happen.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: But, Judge, the bigger concern is is
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this. The 14 year oId daughter, yeah, there's obviously an

issue there that counseling needs to address, and Your Honor

took care of that at the l-ast hearing by directing some

counseling with Donna GosnelI.

However, the Defendant is refusing to cooperate with

Donna Gosne11, or setting any appointments. In fact, we

received a correspondence, and I believe it was addressed to

the Court, as wel-I or a courtesy copy to the Court, as

weIJ-, on August 19th, that indicates that Mr. Wil-l-iams

Ms. ttiilliams has contacted our of f ice to accomplish the

reunification therapy ordered by the Court via Judge Moss.

Pl-ease contact our office so that we may schedufe an

appointment wlth the children and their mother. And -- and

that was sent as a resul-t of my office reaching out to -- to

Ms. Gosnel-I regarding scheduling appointments, and the

indication was Do, he ;ust slmply hasn't done it.

I al-so befieve, Judge, that you had ordered the

the parties to sign up for one of the various parenting apps.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: The Defendant has fail-ed to do that. As

far as any type of communication or anything of that nature,

it's just simply not occurring. My client does not know where

the kids are going to school, which is a serlous concern,

because my c1i-ent understands that the ofdest child is going
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to schoof near her, and if that's the case, then the Defendant

is tikely leavi-ng the other chil-dren home alone while he

del-ivers the chil-dren to school. Again, we t re speculating,

we're not 100 percent sure, because again, the Defendant

si-mply won't provide any of that j-nformation to my client.

And then finaJ-1y, Judge, again, just minor

housekeeping things -- welJ-, one not so minor, but the

Defendant., when he vacated the residence, I believe, Judge, I

believe that the current order of the Court is that my cl-ient

is or that t.he parties are ent.itl-ed to excl-usi-ve possession

of their residences. However, having said that, the Defendant

has retained my client's garage door opener and maj-l-box k"y,

which obviously needs to be returned as soon as possible, and

Judge

THE COURT: To her residence?

MR. TOTI: Yes, Judge. The parties resided in one

residence; the Defendant vacated the residence, moved

somewhere else.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: However, despite the fact that the

Defendant -- and I -- I apologize, Judge, I wasn't on the

matter at t.hat time, if exclusive possession of both parties'

residences have not been

THE COURT: Yeah.
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MR. TOTI: -- provided or ordered then we'd ask --

THE COURT: Are you representing her on the appeal

with the CPS case?

MR. TOTI: I wj-IJ- be, yeS, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. So that's pending. Any --

MR. TOTI: Correct.

THE COURT: -- other updates?

MR. TOTI: Not just that Judge, therers

nothrng act-ive going on with the CPS case. The CPS case, they

are they've cl-osed their case

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: -- with a substantiation of improper

physical discipline to my clj-ent. We'I.l- be appeal-ing that

decision. But again, this is not a physical abuse case or

anything of that nature, just the fact that my clj-ent wasn't

fol-lowlng the proper protocol per CPS guidelines, as far as

what proper physica-1- disci-pline j-s. And then toward --

THE COURT: But no marks were left?

MR. TOTI: It is my understanding that there no

marks found, Judge, but the simple fact that my cl-ient used an

an implement rather than just her open hand is what the

finding is.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: And that's what we will be deal-j-ng wlth.
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THE COURT: My tj-me's limited today, so I want to

hear from the Father.

MR. TOTI: And, Judge, ;ust two more things really

quick.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. TOTI: The Defendant also has my cl-ient's

vehic1e in in his possession. It's my cfient's

understanding that he has another vehicle. She woufd want

that vehicl-e returned to her, pending the outcome of this

matter. And, Judge, based upon the fact

THE COURT: What kind of vehic.Ie is it?

MR. TOTI : It's a truck.

THE PLAINTIEF: 2015 Chevy Silverado.

MR. TOTI: 2015 Chevy Sj-Iverado. And then finally,

Judge, what we would be asking for at this point, the the

younger minor chil-dren don't realJ-y express any fears or

concerns with my cJ-ient.. We woul-d be asking for a

honestly, we'd be asking for a joint physi-caI schedufe with

the three younger children at this point, and we woul-d have

the 74 year ol-d with teen discretion, provided that the

Defendant foflows through with Donna Gosnell, and starts the

reunification therapy between Mom and -- and -- and the child.

If Dad is unwlfling, or un you know, or just not

wj-J-li-ng to cooperate with regard to the terms of -- of -- the
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reunification therapy, Judge, and that obviousl-y would be a

basj-s to change things all together. But at this point, we'lf

give the Defendant the benefit of the doubt. If he will start

immediately complying with the Court's orders, then we can

move this in a in in that directi-on.

THE COURT: Is he complying with the visits?

MR. TOTI: He's dropped off. There have been times

or thj-ngs of that nature when it has been early or l-ate or

somethinq of that nature, based upon the Defendant's schedul-e.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: But at least they have occurred. And

then, Judge, what -- what we have set forth is trlal- is set

for Eebruary, so we woufd need to have something put in place

for hol-idays in the fall-.

THE COURT: Hofidays. We11, you've identlfied about

seven issues here. I need Dad to respond to them.

MR. TOTI: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Al-l- right. The first one, the day I

l-eft out of here, July 22nd, I requested her on the phone with

the child app

THE COURT: AppClose?

THE DEFENDANT: AppClose.

THE COURT: Yeah.
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THE DEFENDANT: No response.

THE PLAINTIFF: That's --

THE DEFENDANT: I have it on my phone where I did

ir.
THE COURT: Yeah.

THE DEFENDANT: It's in the phone.

THE COURT: Supposed to link your accounts.

THE DEFENDANT: I did the first day. The first day

she left out of here, she text me, she wanted the medical

records. When I dj-d that app, she never respond.

The second thing is, is that truck belong to me.

It's a 2500 Chevy Sil-verado with a two hitch on it, with a

wheel- lift. That's what I use to work with.

THE COURT: That's your tow truck?

THE DEFENDANT: That's my tow truck. Thatts what I

use to work with, f rom New York al-l- the way down here. Third

of al-l, when -- when she don't text me nothing about the kids.

The ki-ds will come tel-I me, oh, Mommy said can you drop me off

early? Get out of church at 11:15, supposed to drop them off

at 11:00 at 12:30. I take them over there, I drop them

off, I pick them up.

I don't care where she go, they go to the they

don't go to the park. They go wherever they want to go with

her, I pick them back up. It was school time, school
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shopping, I Iet her go.

I got a text from her the other day. I'm at my

appointment, where you at? Nobody sent me nothing to my phone

about no appol-ntment f or the kids.

The kids is registered with counseling, but it's

four of them. They won't take them. I have all the paper

right here, they start they dates. They won't take al-l- of

them as a group. They only take them j-ndividually.

So I got the three boys going. I got the girl

the daughter going September 11, and this appointments was

made August 14. Nobody never cafl me, If you don't text me,

you can't text me on the day, I'm at. the appointment, where

are your with a question mark. Nobody send me not.hj-ng else.

When I requested, she never request -- she requested

me with the cl-ose app when I ask her. Because I wasn't going

to take the kids out the school. I was going to .Ieave them

there. I the -- Matthew and Elisha was okay.

THE COURT: So you made the appointments with

Gos nel- l- ?

THE DEEENDANT: Yeah

THE COURT: Or you found out about the appointments?

THE DEFENDANT: No, nor no. No, I made the

appolntments myself. And I don't know I don't know j-f it's

the same place. Because they won't take they won't take

D-1s-5E6291-D WTLLTAMS 812612019 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)

VERBAT|M REPORTTNG & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

11

266



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

8

9

10

11

I2

13

I4

15

76

L1

1B

19

20

2t

22

23

24

the Medicaid --

THE COURT: No, they wonrt.

THE DEEENDANT: that I have. AlI the places that

I called won't take the Medicaid. These are t.he the

this is the lady name rlght here, where they going.

THE COURT: Uh-huh. Donna Gosnell-. Who you got

them going with?

THE DEFENDANT: It's Michael G_o.m_e_2.

THE COURT: Gomez?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: What company?

THE DEFENDANT: Thj-s is this is off Sahara, rj-ght

across the street. f rom the medical- hospita1.

MR. TOTI: And -- and, Judge

THE DEFENDANT: Thatrs the only place I can

MR. TOTI: I mean, I

THE DEFENDANT: -- get them to go

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE DEFENDANT: -- because the Medicaid, they won't

take them. Some want cash

THE COURT: And he's a therapist?

THE DEEENDANT: It's a therapist's office.

THE COURT: Okay. But

MR. TOTI: Judge, two issues with t.hat. Number
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number one, quite obviousJ-y --

THE COURT: Mom's paying for Gosnell, right?

MR. TOTI: The directive was Gosneff.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. TOTI: Number two, my client I think was

directed to pay for it. But number three, my cl-ient has

medi-cal- insurance for the kids.

THE DEEENDANT: She don't cal-f me.

THE COURT: And does Gosnel-I take her lnsurance?

THE PLAINTIFE: No, maram. I actually

THE COURT: But you're going to pay

THE PLAINTIFF: I -- I -- I paid --

THE COURT: -- cash basi-s.

THE PLAINTIEF: I paid because the they didn't

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIFE: show up, and --

THE COURT: And -- yeah, and -- and he says hers

having trouble communicating with you about --

THE PLAINTIFF: Ma'am, I -- I haven't -- he hasn't

-- my number hasn't changed, and I do have proof here that

when I left here, I sent him the Iink, which is here on my

phone

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE PLAINTIEF: t.hat I sent him the link to say
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f've signed up for AppClose

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF: and when I scheduled the

appointment, I put it on the cal-endar as you instructed me to

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF: and I, again, I sent him the link

again for the appointment

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF: -- and he did not I showed up for

Lhe appointment, and I was sitting there, and I'm llke, where

are you? And I had to pay for the appointment. So

MR. TOTI: And, Judge, my client just sent again

another

THE PLAINTIFF: Link.

MR. TOTI: request to

THE COURT: Are you not get.t.ing these requests, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: It just I just opened my phone.

It's right there, but when I did it

THE COURT: You didn't get another request just now?

THE DEFENDANT: WeIJ-, we in court.

MR. TOTI: Yes. She ;ust

THE DEFENDANT: I'm just opening my phone.

MR. TOTI: sent it.

D-15-586291-O WtLL|AMS 812612019 TRANSCRTPT (SEALED)

vERBAT|M REPORTTNG & TRANSCR|PT|ON, LLC (520) 303-7356

L4

269



1

2

3

4

5

6

1

B

9

10

11

l2

13

l4

15

l6

l1

1B

t9

20

2l

22

23

24

THE COURT: Okay.

THE PLAINTIFF: That's what I'm saying. So, Your

Honor

THE DEFENDANT : Now, l-ook . August 3rd, heJ-1o,

Nadine. August 3rd, I sent this to her. I'm dropping off the

kids, Nat.haniel -- she ask me if I'm dropping them at schoof .

The same time this was August 6th.

THE COURT: WeII, it

THE DEFENDANT: The same time I appJ-ied --

THE COURT: Is your accounts linked, so it's on the

same

THE DEFENDANT: Wel-I, when I applied for her, she

never Iinked. She never accepted it when I applied to accept

her. She never

THE COURT: And she's

THE DEFENDANT: applied it.

THE COURT: saying you she sent you an lnvite

Iike three times.

THE DEFENDANT: No, just now. And one, when I --

when I said, this is the CloseApp --

THE COURT: Al-1 right. You got the invite?

THE DEEENDANT: Just now.

THE COURT: Did you accept it?

THE DEFENDANT: No, just now. I just got it just
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now,

THE COURT: Did you accept it?

THE DEFENDANT: No, I was tal-king to you and going

through my phone, trying to --

MR. TOTI: Accept it.

THE COURT: Then go ahead and accept the invite

l-ink. Now you guys can communicate.

THE PLAINTIEE: And by the the way, Your Honor,

it does say that he read the Iink originally sent on JuJ-y

22nd. There is a read receipt on there

THE COURT: Yeah.

THE PLAINTIFF: that. he read it.

THE COURT: YCAh.

THE DEFENDANT: It Do, it came JuIy 22nd, because

the onJ-y thing came JuIy 22nd -

THE COURT: It had a read receiPt.

THE DEFENDANT: -- was send me the kids medical-

records. That was it. The link came after, when I -- when I

went to go apply the kids, to put Herman in school-, the school

won't take him because of the address. I text her from

Herman's phone, my son's phone, asking her for the bill. Got

smart. I just Ieft it alone. Got to get them registered in

school-. So I removed the three boys and put them up here.

And put them up here cl-oser --
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THE COURT: All right.

THE DEFENDANT: in school-.

THE COURT: What about her garage door opener and

her mailbox key?

THE DEFENDANT: The mailbox key is j-n the house.

Refused to give me aI1 my mai-I. She didn't say, when she

threw my insurance off the the poJ-icy and added her

boyfriend truck to it

THE COURT: So where is it.? Where's

THE DEFENDANT: WhAt?

THE COURT: -- those two things?

THE DEFENDANT: The mai-lbox --

THE COURT: The opener and the mailbox key.

THE DEEENDANT: The mail-box key is in my house in a

plastic bag in the key. f don't get no mail. She she

takes all my mail.

THE COURT: So you have no problem glving her back

the key?

THE DEFENDANT: NO.

THE COURT: All- right. And what about her garage

door opener?

THE DEFENDANT: I'l-l- give her back that, too.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: But I need the rest of my stuff out
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of the garage. I got my toofs in the garage. My scaffold, my

transmissions -- mad tool-s in the garage that stil-I belongs to

me.

THE COURT: So you want to make an appointment to

pick up your stuff

MR. TOTI: He can contact my office, Judge.

THE DEFENDANT: I want aI1 my stuff picked up.

MR. TOTI: The the problem is that he's

mentioning the truck. I I'm l-ooklng at his FDF. There's

nothing on the FDF that says that he uses the tow truck for

his work.

THE DEFENDANT: I uses it. The truck got a wheel

Iift on it.

THE COURT: Are there any other vehicles?

THE DEFENDANT: The other truck, I got in trouble

the other day. The one I've been driving now, I got in

trouble, because it's two cranes. There's one that grabs the

front wheel-, and there's one that grabs -- when you flip out

the crane i-n the back, it's messing with the people bumpers.

So they l-lmit me to work.

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

THE DEEENDANT: I broke a piece on the back of the

crane, I ordered it. It's coming, i-t should be here this

week.
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THE COURT: AII right. So you

THE DEFENDANT: I broke a piece of the hose, and

nobody down here had it because the lift came from Lift and

Two in Pennsylvania, Shippensburg, Pennsylvani-a. Nobody knows

THE COURT: And you're considering your 2015

Silverado as a commerciaf vehicle?

THE DEFENDANT: It's a commercial vehicl-e. Got to

pay the -- been a commercial- vehic1e from New York.

MR. TOTI: But my cl-ient's paying --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TOTI: for it, Judge.

THE DEFENDANT: Rlght? She gave me opportunity on

the phone --

THE COURT: He's using it

THE DEEENDANT: I have voice mail-. I'm not going

to take the truck, you can keep the truck --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: just make the monthly payments.

After I moved out, August 8, she cancels the insurance.

Cancels the insurance on me, so I had to get new insurance. I

was driving insurance wi-th my kids

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: for four for three months
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because I don't get no mail from the house. I had to pay DMV

five something to reinstate the l-icense plates on one of the

trucks. I have al-l the paperwork when she cancefed the

insurance on me. I had to renew a new policy -- renew a new

policy

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: -- because she put the kids in in

danger by drive -- having me drive with no i-nsurance and have

me not even notified.

THE COURT: A11 right. Let me make a couple of

ruJ-ings here. Number --

THE DEFENDANT: See, this is the commercial-

reglstrat.ion for

THE COURT: We'11 deal with that l-ater, sir.

THE DEFENDANT: Al-l right.

THE COURT: It's not a main -- major issue. This is

what I can do, temporarily. Number one, in terms of Donna

Gosnell being the reunj-fication counselor, Mom's paying for

it, so you have to cooperate with the appointments.

THE DEFENDANT: I have no problem --

THE COURT: You can

THE DEFENDANT: Look, can I just show you somethi-ng,

please ?

THE COURT: Sir, I'm making a
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THE DEFENDANT: Alt right.

THE COURT: ruling.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: You need to cooperate with Donna

Gosnefl. If you have any -- any questions about appointments,

you can talk to Gosnel-l-'s office directly. And Mom's going to

prepay that without prejudice so she can have her sessions

with the ki-ds. If you fail to cooperate, I will advise you, I

may change custody --

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: -- if you do not cooperate with the

appointments. If you you have troubfe get.ting

communications from Mom, why don't you cal-.1- the source? CaI1

Gosnell-'s office and sign up --

THE DEFENDANT: I donrt have the number.

THE COURT: -- with her. That's al-I you need to do.

Number two, I'm going to have the parents they have

probJ-ems with communicatlon. I'm going to have both parents

do the Triple P parenting class, give them the brochures. The

one you gave me's in Spanish. Woul-d you give t.hem the

brochures? They're from ages there's a two to lI, and then

there's a -- it's in Spanish. But they got a 14 year old.

So the two through 11 woul-d be not Triple P. It

would be ABCs of parenting, five through 10, and then for the
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teen one, Teen Triple P, 11 to 71 years o1d. So that's two

courses they got to get done before February's trial. I'm

ordering both of them to do the courses.

They don't have to go to the same class together.

Maybe one should do one fj-rst, and then the other do the

other, and then switch. So it's free, it's through Cl-ark

County, you got to devote a coupJ-e hours every weekend, six to

eight six to eight weekends, and get the parenti-ng classes

done. That may heJ-p you manage your children.

MR. TOTI: And, Judge, just to make it reaIIy easy

THE COURT: Yeah?

MR. TOTI: -- we'l-l have the -- my cl-ient will do

the teen one first

THE COURT: A11 right.

MR. TOTI: and then the ABC, and Dad can

THE COURT: You see t.hat, sir

MR. TOTI: -- do vice versa.

THE COURT: on the brochure? Three three from

the bottom, TripJ-e Teen? Mom's going to do that one first..

The fourth from the top, ABCs of parenting, you're going to do

that, and they give you a free certifi-cate. And then you guys

wi-ll do the reverse. You do ABCs of parenting first, sir.

You ;ust sign up when the next course happens.
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THE DEFENDANT: ThaTIs ABC?

THE COURT: Okay? Yeah. We're going to overl-oad

them with cl-asses. Now, they need to take the onl-ine high

conf l-ict parenting cl-ass, due to communication problems. And

my JEA, Susanna (ph), is going to email Mr. Toti, and Dad, the

l-ink to do the onf ine high confl-ict parenting class. That's

about 60, 65 bucks. Okay?

The dj-vorce class, that is the chil-dren coping with

divorce class, that has to get done. That's mandatory in any

divorce case with chil-dren. So you have to do that one fi-rst,

also. The that is on our website, in the far count --

family court self help center website. You can get the link

for chil-dreni-nthemiddle.com. So we're golng t.o overfoad them

with cl-asses, due to communication problems.

The AppCfose should be working. If you have any

issues, I would cal-I technical support for that app and ask

them why messages aren't going through. Okay? So we got to

make that work. You shoul-d have gotten the invite link now,

and messages should be coming through, and uploading of

appointments should come through on t.here. Medical bi11s, you

can upJ-oad it on the app and get half reimbursement. The

Sil-verado truck, we 're going to wait for that at trial-. He

can continue to use it. And I don't know, Mr. Toti-, you can

get discovery about his work --
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MR. TOTI: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: the nature of his work. The garage

door, mail-box key, at the next exchange, you're going to put

it i-n a little pJ-astic baggie and lust hand it over to Mom.

Okay?

THE DEFENDANT: I have no problem.

THE COURT: Yeah. And, you know, you can take a

pict.ure of you handing it over to Mom, just to know -- just to

make sure.

THE DEFENDANT: And when do I get the rest of my

stuff out my garage t.he garage?

THE COURT: And so break out your ceII phone, take a

picture of you handing over the bag to her.

THE DEFENDANT: AlI right.

THE COURT: Okay. So you got your parenting

classes, you cooperate with Gosnelf. We'fl monitor the CPS

appeal, and I'IJ- put her on the default holiday schedul-e for

parents. And it's the easiest way to figure out what

holidays, Labor Duy, Thanksgiving, that's aIl coming up. It's

all- there in writing. It's self explanatory.

I'm going to move Mom up to day visi-ts, because

that's what we're supposed to do. Dad's l-ooks like Dad's

been complying with the drop off and pick up for the kids.

We're going to move it to eight hours a day now on Sundays.
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No overnights yet until we come back at a l-ater time.

THE DEFENDANT: So what

THE COURT: Okay?

THE DEEENDANT: -- what time on Sundays?

THE COURT: What time on Sundays? You got

THE DEFENDANT: Because they go to church.

THE COURT: church?

THE DEFENDANT: They go to church. They get out at

11:00 11:15.

THE COURT: So you want to swj-tch it to Saturdays?

You work on Saturdays?

THE DEEENDANT: I work seven days a week. I've been

working seven days a week --

THE COURT: AII right. WeJ-1, Mom can watch --

THE DEFENDANT: -- but I have been making time

THE COURT: the kids for a fulJ- eight-hour day,

or a 10-hour day if you need, so you can go do work, and

she'l-l- be no overnights, but she'If mind them on Saturday

then.

MR. TOTI: Mom would say -- Mom woufd say Saturday

10:00 to 6:00.

THE COURT: 10:00 to 6:00 on Saturdays? And then

Sunday's they're with you. You go to church. and then you can

get get
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THE DEFENDANT: No, I don't go to church. They go

to

THE COURT: them ready for school-.

THE DEFENDANT: church with their grandma.

THE COURT: Yeah. They can go with the grandma.

THE DEFENDANT: And no house visits?

THE COURT: We're golng to switch it to Saturdays.

THE DEFENDANT: No house visits?

THE COURT: What do you mean, no house visits?

THE DEEENDANT: Like, taking the ki-ds to her house.

THE COURT: Taking the kids to her house?

THE DEFENDANT: Uh-huh (affirmative).

THE COURT: She can go wherever she wants for those

eight hours.

THE DEEENDANT: A11 right.

THE COURT: So the answer is yes, she can take them

to her house.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: Be appropriate. No corporal punishment,

both sides of the famlly here. Vrle don't spank our kids no

more. There's other ways to discipline them. Time out, take

away their phones, and if Mom has to discipline a chiId, l-ike

the teenager, and the child come crying to you, you find out

what's going on. Sometimes you got to support the mom and
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back her up if she's disciptining.

If the girl's back talking to her, or not listening

to her rul-es, you got to back Mom up. Otherwise, that girl's

going to play both of you. Okay? She may want to stay with

you, the next day, she don't like the rules in your house, she

going to go crying to go back to her mom. And then you lose

custody of the girl. So if she needs to be disciplined, take

away her phone.

If you take away her phone, but 1f she needs to talk

or text to her dad, she can ask you permj-ssion, she can talk

and text to her dad, and then get her phone back until the

grounding period is over. Okay? So we're going to move her

up to that. And our next trial date woul-d be February 4th at

1:30.

We shoul-d have a cal-endar cal-l- maybe one month

before to see if they do the parent.ing classes, or I need to

change custody, if a parent I s not commune cooperating or

communicating properly. Let's do one month before two

weeks before trral, somewhere there, make sure they're on

track, get them ready for trial-, make sure they have their

pretrial memos filed, trial bri-efs, and exhibits?

THE CLERK: January 22nd at 9:00 a.m.

THE COURT: Yeah, You guaranteed to go, stack one on

the February 4th.
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MR. TOTI: And, Judge

THE COURT: I'm going to see you January 22nd, make

sure I get your

MR. TOTI: Judge, I'fI prepare --

THE COURT: exhibits.

MR. TOTI: I'11 prepare an order from today --

THE COURT: I appreciate that.

MR. TOTI: and, Your Honor, is is there an

order in effect for joint legal custody of the children right

now ?

THE COURT: It should be joint legal. I see no

reason for joint

MR. TOTI: I'l-l- I'l-I make sure that's in the

order then. My cl-ient indicated that she was having --

THE COURT: Okay. You

MR. TOTI: -- probJ-ems with the school. But that

that shoul-d take care of that.

THE COURT: That shoul-d take care of that. Now, You

know what school they go to?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. One go to Sedway Middl-e

Schoof, that's where Herman goes to.

THE COURT: Sedway?

THE DEFENDANT: YCS.

THE COURT: Okay.
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THE DEFENDANT: That's on the north side.

THE COURT: AII right.

THE DEEENDANT: And Matthew and Elisha goes to I

have 1t right here

THE COURT: So one's middl-e school. One's

el-ementary school, and one shoul-d be in high school?

THE DEEENDANT: Well-, Abigail's in high school.

She's still in the same schoo1. I didn't have no problem with

her.

THE COURT: What hi-gh school- she go to?

THE PLAINTIFF: Desert Oasis --

THE DEFENDANT: Desert

THE PLAINTIFE: -- which is by my house.

THE COURT: Desert Breeze? Okay. And the the

Ilttle ones?

THE DEFENDANT: They go to Gfenwood.

THE COURT: Glenwood? Okay.

MR. TOTI: Okay. Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: You got the info. Oh, let's make an

appointment. He want to pick up his toofs --

THE PLAINTIFF: Your Honor, there's no tool-s. The

only thing that's l-eft i-n my garage is a scaffol-d and a

transmi-ssi-on. There's no t.oo1s in there.

THE COURT: Scaffold and a trans
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THE DEFENDANT: Speaker box is the is there's

toofs in there.

THE PLAINT]FE: YouT HonoT

THE DEFENDANT: They aII behind the scaffold,

stuffed in the scaffol-d, speaker box. I have a grilI. My

vacuum --

THE COURT: Why don't I have this, have Mom take a

video of everything in the garage, and whatever's behind those

things, and then send you the video on the or pictures, you

can send pictures through the AppClose. And then he can

identify what he wants, and then when he comes, he wifl-

designate a day where he'l-l- come pick it up, have an, you

know, an hour to pick it up, and then he can haul it off. You

can work with the attorney, Mr.Toti, and I'lI have Mr. Toti's

cl-ient send you the pictures of what's in the garage.

MR. TOTI: Judge, what we can do, my client

indicates that the Defendant emptled the residence. So we've

got a l-ot of issues

THE COURT: Uh-huh.

MR. TOTI: -- with regards to property on both

sides.

THE COURT: Yeah, I get a lot of he said, she said.

A11 I'm asking her to do is take pictures.

MR. TOTI: Understood, Judge. And then we can
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coordinate

THE COURT: And then you can coordinate

MR. TOTI: -- perhaps some

THE COURT: -- with Dad -

MR. TOTI: some properties coming back and forth,

and --

THE COURT: -- what -- what he all wants.

MR. TOTI: i-f there's an issue, we'J-I

THE COURT: If it's in the picture

MR. TOTI : (indiscernibl-e ) the Court

(1ndj-scernible) trial- issue.

THE COURT: you can set it out front

MR. TOTI: That's fine.

THE COURT: -- and you can go pick it up.

MR. TOTI: That's fine, Judge.

THE COURT: Set it in the driveway or something.

AII right. Mr. Toti will work with you, sir, to get some of

that stuff, if you need it for work. First thing she going to

do, she's going to send you pictures.

MR. TOTI: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you.

(PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 9:24:46)
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ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and

correctl-y transcribed the di-gitaI proceedings in the

above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

/s/ Nita Painter
Nita Painter
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